

Cardiovascular Technology Program STUDENT HANDBOOK

Molloy University 1000 Hempstead Avenue Rockville Centre, NY 11571-5002

DISCLAIMER

Please note that this handbook applies to all Cardiovascular Technology (CVT) students. The purpose of this Handbook is to set forth expected standards of conduct, and prohibited behavior, and to identify the processes and procedures the CVT Program may employ to resolve breaches of those standards. This Handbook is subject to change, and the CVT Program may in its sole and absolute discretion, at times, review and revise the Cardiovascular Technology Program Student Handbook to ensure that it is up-to-date, applicable, and consistent with the Program's overall mission and vision. This Cardiovascular Technology Program Student Handbook is intended only to provide information for the guidance of CVT students. The information is subject to change and CVT Program reserves the right to depart without notice from any policy or procedure referred to in this Handbook. Such changes will be distributed for insertion into the appropriate section of the Cardiovascular Technology Program Student Handbook. All students enrolled in any courses sponsored by the Program must comply with such changes at the time specified. This Handbook is not intended to be and should not be regarded as a contract between Molloy University and any student or other person.

Revised September 2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Table of Contents	3-8
SECTION I	
ACADEMIC POLICIES	9
Cardiovascular Technology Faculty and Staff	10
Introduction	11
Mission Statement Molloy University	11
Vision Statement Molloy University	11
Goals of Molloy University	11
Mission of the Cardiovascular Technology Program	11
Goals of the Cardiovascular Technology Program	11
Objectives of the Cardiovascular Technology Program	12
The Student Handbook	12
Description of Cardiovascular Technology	13
Programmatic Accreditation	13
Program Compliance	13
Regional Accreditation	13
National Credentialing	13
Admission Requirements Freshman	14 14
Entrance Examinations	14
Admissions Application Procedure	15
Transfer Students	15

Transfer of College Credit	16
Advanced Placement	16
Admissions and Progression Requirements	16
Grading Criteria for Progression	17
Priorities for Student Grade Below C+ in Cardiovascular	
Technology Courses	17
Health Requirements	17
Title IX	18
Non-Discrimination Policy	18
ADA and Rehabilitation Act	18
DSS/STEEP Disability Support	18
Tutoring Services	19
FERPA	19
Statement of Academic Integrity	21
Honor Pledge	22
Academic Infractions Subject to Disciplinary Action	22
Due Process Procedure in Academic Areas	$\frac{\overline{2}}{2}$
Procedure	22
Rights of Students in disciplinary Proceedings	23
Formal Hearing	24
Appeal	24
Disciplinary Dismissal/Disciplinary Suspension	25
Policy Concerning Grade Appeal	26
Attendance	29
Grading Policy	29
Withdraw From Courses	30
Technical Standards in Cardiovascular Technology	32

Remediation	34
Faculty Advising and Office Hours	35
Membership in Professional Organizations	35
Intellectual Property	35
Student Activities	35
Student Awards	35
Professional Societies	36
Summer Clinical Coursework	36
Cardiovascular Technology AAS Degree Course Requirement	37
Cardiovascular Technology Course Descriptions	38
SECTION II	
STANDARDS OF CLINICAL BEHAVIOR AND PRACTICE	41
Introduction Health Requirements Student Health Insurance Student Injuries or Illness While Attending Clinical Non-Employee Policy Basic Life Support Certification	42 42 43 43 43
Cardiovascular Technology in a Culturally Diverse World	43
The Clinical Preceptor Model	44
Responsibilities of the Cardiovascular Technology Program	45
Responsibilities of the Cardiovascular Technology Student	45
Cardiovascular Technology Program Guidelines Clinical Attendance Policies General Statement on Conduct	46 46 46

Clinical Dress Code	47
Non-Compliance with Dress Code	47
Additional Student Responsibilities	47
Clinical Rotations- Documentation and Evaluation	48
Laboratory Access	48
Professional Confidentiality - HIPAA	48
Social Media	48
Smoking Policy	48
Transportation to Clinical Affiliates	49
SDMS Statement of Ethics and Professional Conduct	49
Clinical Affiliate List	50
Clinical Education Eligibility	53
Policies Governing Clinical Education Scheduling	53
Clinical Site Assignment	53
Clearance for Clinical Placements	54
Statement to Clinical Affiliates	54
Hospital Job Actions or Strikes	55
Jury Duty	55
Incident Reports at a Clinical Affiliate Site	55
Immunizations/Infectious Diseases	55
Statement on Care for Patients with Suspected Infectious or	55

APPENDICES

A.	Patients' Bill of Rights	57
В.	Scope of Practice and Clinical Standards for the Diagnostic Medical Sonographer	59
C.	SDMS Statement of Ethics and Professional Conduct	60
D.	Technical Standards for the Diagnostic Medical Sonographer	62
E.	Policy on Clinical Education Assignments	63
F.	Policy Regarding Advanced Placement, Transfer of Credit, and Credit for Experiential Learning	64
G.	Policy on Service Work for Students	65
Н.	Permission to Release Information	66
I.	Diagnostic Medical Sonography Scanning Policy and Informed Consent	67
J.	Policy on Laboratory Access	70
K.	Confidentiality Policy	71
L.	Documentation of Clinical Education Requirements for Students	72
Μ.	CastleBranch Clinical Compliance Tracking System	73
N.	Acknowledgment of Receipt, Understanding, and Agreement to Remain in Compliance with the <i>Molloy University Cardiovascular Technology Program Student Handbook</i>	74

SECTION I ACADEMIC POLICIES

ALLIED HEALTH SCIENCES DEPARTMENT

Michael Hartman, MS, RDMS, RVT, RT(R) Chairperson	mhartman@molloy.edu	516-323-3388
Elisabet Gardner Administrative Assistant	egardner@molloy.edu	516-323-3383

CARDIOVASCULAR TECHNOLOGY PROGRAM

Michael Hartman, MS, RDMS, RVT, RT(R) Program Director and Assistant Professor	mhartman@molloy.edu	516-323-3388
Maria Mazalkova, MD, RDCS Associate Professor	mmazalkova@molloy.edu	516-323-3396
Kathleen Luers, MS, RPA, RVT Clinical Coordinator and Adjunct Instructor	kluers@molloy.edu	516-323-3391
Thierry Duchatellier, MD Medical Director	tduchatellier@molloy.edu	
John Pellerito, MD Medical Director	jpellerito@molloy.edu	

INTRODUCTION

To meet the challenges of the present and future of health care, the cardiovascular technologist must function competently in an expanding, multi-faceted role. Recent trends and advances in the delivery of health care indicate that the cardiovascular technology curriculum must provide the student with opportunities to develop skills in multiple areas of patient care. Of equal importance is the need for the graduate to understand the relationships of various imaging specialties to patient care. Graduates can pursue a career in a variety of cardiovascular areas, including clinical practice, education, management, sales, and research.

MISSION STATEMENT OF MOLLOY UNIVERSITY

Molloy University, an independent, Catholic University, rooted in the Dominican tradition of study, spirituality, service, and community, is committed to academic excellence with respect for each person. Through transformative education, Molloy promotes a lifelong search for truth and the development of ethical leadership.

VISION STATEMENT OF MOLLOY UNIVERSITY

Molloy University, built on Catholic and Dominican characteristics of intellectual life, study and the search for truth, is committed to academic excellence through a value-centered, holistic education in liberal arts and professional programs. Molloy University is dedicated to fostering a diverse and inclusive learning community, which focuses on respect for each person and leadership through service.

GOALS OF MOLLOY UNIVERSITY

Molloy University is committed to:

- being Catholic and Dominican in philosophy and outlook
- student-centered learning
- academic quality
- leadership through service
- engagement with the wider community
- maintaining stewardship

MISSION OF THE CARDIOVASCULAR TECHNOLOGY PROGRAM

The mission of the Cardiovascular Technology Program is to provide excellence and leadership in all aspects by teaching, researching, and providing exemplary clinical practice skills in this and related areas of the cardiovascular technology field.

GOALS OF THE CARDIOVASCULAR TECHNOLOGY PROGRAM

The goal of the Cardiovascular Technology Program is to prepare graduates as competent registered cardiovascular technologists (CVTs). Professional competence combines cognitive, psychomotor and affective skills essential for the safe and effective delivery of cardiovascular care. The Cardiovascular Technology Program uses the outcome-based education model to ensure students develop and master the knowledge, skills, and professional behaviors expected of the cardiovascular technologist.

The didactic, laboratory and clinical components of the Cardiovascular Technology Program curriculum within the Department of Allied Health Sciences of Molloy University provide an environment for students to develop and master:

- knowledge, insight and skills required to produce optimal diagnostic images and perform accurate physiologic testing
- effective communication techniques required to interact successfully with both patients and other members of the health care team
- self-assessment skills required to evaluate correctly the quality and quantity of their work
- critical thinking and problem-solving skills required to meet the challenges of the dynamic healthcare environment
- values for commitment to life-long learning, public education and involvement in their professional organizations

The Cardiovascular Technology Program is designed with your success and convenience in mind, offering a dynamic blend of hybrid, online, and in-person learning experiences. This flexible format allows students to balance their education with personal and professional commitments, while still receiving the high-quality instruction and support they need. Online components provide accessibility and convenience, hybrid courses offer the best of both virtual and face-to-face learning, and in-person sessions ensure hands-on practice and direct interaction with faculty and peers. Together, this well-rounded approach enhances the overall learning experience and prepares students to thrive in both academic and clinical settings.

OBJECTIVES OF THE CARDIOVASCULAR TECHNOLOGY PROGRAM

The objectives of the program are to prepare graduates with demonstrated competence in the cognitive (knowledge), psychomotor (skills), and affective (behavior) learning domains of cardiovascular technology practice as performed by registered cardiovascular technologists, who will:

- pass the national registry examination(s)
- produce images providing optimal information obtained with appropriate techniques
- apply appropriate protection practices toward the patient, self, the health care team and the public
- apply critical thinking and problem solving in making decisions about imaging exams
- contribute to the physical and psychological comfort of the patient under the guidelines of the Patients' Bill of Rights (Appendix A)
- adhere to the Code of Ethics in professional practice (Appendix C)
- assume responsibility for professional development
- demonstrate communication ability by establishing rapport with patients and the healthcare team

THE STUDENT HANDBOOK

This Student Handbook on Academic Policies and Clinical Education serves as a guide for students enrolled in the Cardiovascular Technology Program within the Allied Health Sciences Department at Molloy University.

The Molloy University student is required to uphold a high standard of academic and nonacademic conduct. That standard is presented in this document and will be upheld by the Allied Health Sciences Department. Academic and nonacademic misconduct at Molloy University is subject to disciplinary action.

This Student Handbook is given to matriculating students at the start of the Cardiovascular Technology Program. The Cardiovascular Technology Program will obtain documentation of the receipt and review of the Student Handbook. Each student will be responsible for maintaining knowledge of the information contained in this Student Handbook.

DESCRIPTION OF CARDIOVASCULAR TECHNOLOGY

Cardiovascular Technologists assist physicians in the diagnosis and treatment of a wide variety of disorders affecting the cardiovascular system. Using a wide range of instrumentation, Cardiovascular Technologists acquire and record information related to cardiovascular (the heart and blood vessels) anatomy, physiology, and pathophysiology. Although ultrasound instrumentation is the most common modality, a wide variety of other instruments are also used to measure parameters of pathology and pathophysiology, such as blood pressure, cardiac function, limb volume changes, and oxygen saturation.

PROGRAMMATIC ACCREDITATION

The Molloy University Cardiovascular Technology Program is accredited by the Commission on Accreditation of Allied Health Education Programs (CAAHEP) (www.caahep.org), a programmatic postsecondary accrediting agency recognized by the Council for Higher Education Accreditation (CHEA) located at 1361 Park Street, Clearwater, Florida, upon the recommendation of the Joint Review Committee on Education in Cardiovascular Technology (JRCCVT) (www.jrccvt.org), located at 355 Hartford Avenue, Uxbridge, Massachusetts. The Cardiovascular Technology Program is also approved by the New York State Department of Education (NYDOE).

PROGRAM COMPLIANCE

If a student feels the Program is not in compliance with the JRCCVT Standards, a complaint must be submitted, in writing, to the Program Director along with documentation for the complaint. The Chairperson of the Allied Health Sciences Department, Program Director, and Clinical Coordinator will review the complaint and respond to the student within five (5) business days of receipt. If the student is not satisfied with the response, the student has the right to contact the JRCCVT.

REGIONAL ACCREDITATION

Molloy University is regionally accredited by the Middle States Commission on Higher Education.

NATIONAL CREDENTIALING

The American Registry for Diagnostic Medical Sonography (ARDMS) and Cardiovascular Credentialing International (CCI) are the official credentialing bodies of the profession. These organizations set standards for entry into the credentialing process, administer examinations for cardiovascular technology practitioners, and ensure the integrity of the examination process. They also maintain a registry of all certified cardiovascular technology personnel. Information and application for cardiovascular technology credentialing exams can be obtained by contacting the ARDMS directly at www.ardms.org or CCI directly at <a href="ht

Graduates are eligible to take the Registry Board Examinations to become a Registered Diagnostic Cardiac Sonographer (RDCS) and Registered Vascular Technologist (RVT), as credentialed by the American Registry for Diagnostic Medical Sonography (ARDMS) or, similarly, the Registered Cardiac Sonographer (RCS) and Registered Vascular Specialist (RVS), as credentialed by Cardiovascular Credentialing International (CCI).

ADMISSIONS REQUIREMENTS

Admission to the Cardiovascular Technology Program is offered on a space-available basis to ensure that every enrolled student receives access to high-quality, hands-on clinical experiences. Because clinical education is a critical component of the program, admission is carefully managed in alignment with the capacity of our affiliated clinical sites. This intentional approach allows students to benefit from smaller clinical cohorts, more individualized instruction, and a richer learning environment. By prioritizing access to exceptional clinical placements, the program supports each student's ability to build confidence, gain real-world skills, and successfully transition into the workforce.

FRESHMEN

Entrance requirements include graduation from high school or equivalent* with 20.5 units, including the following:

English	4
Foreign Language	3
Mathematics	3
Social Studies	4
Science	3

Cardiovascular Technology majors must have biology, chemistry, and mathematics.

ENTRANCE EXAMINATIONS

Entrance examinations should include one of the following tests:

- Scholastic Achievement Test (SAT). Information may be obtained through the high school guidance office or by writing to the College Entrance Examination Board, P.O. Box 592, Princeton, New Jersey 08540.
- American College Test (ACT). Information may also be obtained through the high school guidance office or by writing American College Testing Program, P.O. Box 168, Iowa City, Iowa 52250.

Entering students are required to score a minimum of 480 on the Critical Reading section of the SAT exam or have completed ENG 101 with a minimum grade of "C" prior to beginning the program. Entering students are required to score a minimum score of 450 on the Math SAT, or are required to take and pass MAT 071, with a minimum grade of "C" prior to beginning the program. Students who do not have a Math SAT score must take and pass the math placement exam. Students who do not pass the exam must take and pass MAT 071, with a minimum grade of "C" prior to beginning the program (see "Admissions Requirements for Freshmen and Transfers" in front section of the Molloy University Undergraduate Catalog).

^{*} Applicants who apply with a General Equivalency Diploma (GED) must submit an official high school transcript, as well as a copy of their GED Score Report.

ADMISSIONS APPLICATION PROCEDURE

The application procedure is initiated by obtaining an application form from the Office of Admissions and carefully following the directions on the application. Upon receipt of high school credentials, SAT/ACT scores (freshmen only), the application and a non-refundable Application Fee, the Admissions Committee considers applications for admission. Although not required, a personal interview is strongly suggested to clarify Molloy's programs to the applicant.

Based on the results of the above evaluation, students may be admitted into the program or given recommended coursework required to obtain eligibility for admission. Non-matriculated students are not eligible to take any coursework that involves clinical experiences. The Office of Admissions reviews applications and notification of the decision is made to all applicants who complete the application procedure.

Acceptances are based on rolling admissions. To receive confirmation of acceptance, a candidate must submit a non-refundable Confirmation Deposit which is required as soon as possible after acceptance or by the date specified in the acceptance letter.

All students must submit documentation of immunization, as mandated by the New York State Public Health Law. Students born after January 1, 1957, must submit documentation of immunization to Measles (2 doses), Mumps, and Rubella. It is recommended that all students have a current physical and tuberculin test (PPD) prior to university studies.

TRANSFER STUDENTS

Transfer students must follow the regular admission procedure. In addition, they must forward all official college transcripts from previously attended institutions. Transfer students may request an interview for an evaluation of credits before they file an application. Transfer students who do not have an associate degree, or higher, must submit a copy of their high school transcript as proof of high school graduation. Transfer students should have applications and all necessary transcripts submitted by August 15 for admission in the Fall semester. Applications submitted after these dates will be eligible for late registration.

Transfer students must be in good academic standing at their previous college to be accepted into Molloy University. Only credit hours are accepted in transfer; the cumulative average begins with a student's first semester at Molloy. The Admissions Office will do a credit evaluation either during the applicant's interview or upon acceptance into the university. The "Status Sheet," part of the student's acceptance package, indicates those courses which are accepted for credit, and identifies all other coursework needed by the student to complete his/her degree at Molloy University. The last 30 credits toward graduation must be completed at Molloy University. In addition, students must take at least one half of the major requirements at Molloy University. Any exception to this must be obtained in writing from the office of the Vice President for Academic Affairs.

Allied Health Sciences' Transfer applicants must have a minimum cumulative grade point average of 2.5 in previous college work to be considered for admission. Applicants may be required to have an interview with the Program Director at the Department's discretion. Students who would be entering Molloy University with more than junior status (64 credits) are encouraged to arrange for an interview with an Admissions Counselor to discuss possible program options.

TRANSFER OF COLLEGE CREDIT

Transfer students who have attended two-year colleges will be awarded credit for their previous coursework up to a maximum of 64 credits. Transfer students, who have attended four-year institutions, will be awarded credit for their previous coursework up to a maximum of 98 credits. Students entering a bachelor's degree program at Molloy University, who already hold a bachelor's degree from another accredited institution, will receive 98 credits in transfer and will have all General Education requirements waived.

Transfer credit is awarded only for courses with grades of "C+" or better from the institution at which these courses were completed. Courses with grades lower than "C+" are considered only if a degree was completed at the school where the credits were taken. In such a case, "D" credit, which was part of the program leading toward that degree will be acceptable or unacceptable in the same way a grade of "D" at Molloy University would be applied (i.e., not in the Major, where a grade of "C+" or better is required). For Allied Health Sciences' Programs, a minimum grade of C+ is required for credit in all science courses. For all transfer students, the grade of "P" will be considered for transfer credit, to be used in the same way that the Pass/Fail rules at Molloy University allow. The "P" grade must be the equivalent of a "C+" grade at the institution where the credits were completed to be considered unless, again, a degree was completed.

Transfer students coming from unaccredited colleges or schools are required to complete a minimum of 30 credits in residence before receiving credit for their previous applicable coursework. The total number of credits earned prior to admission through independent study, advanced placement, and credit by examination (CLEP, RCE, REDE), may not exceed 46.

ADVANCED PLACEMENT EXAM TRANSFER CREDIT

Advanced Placement credit will be granted by Molloy University to qualified students based on a score of "3" or better on the Advanced Placement Examination of the College Entrance Examination Board. Students anticipating a major in Biology need a minimum score of "5" to award Advanced Placement credit in Biology. A score of "3" or better will be considered for general elective credit. Official score reports must be forwarded to the Admissions Office to be granted credit.

ADMISSIONS AND PROGRESSION REQUIREMENTS

- Admission to the program is on a space-available basis.
- The Cardiovascular Technology Program incorporates a mix of hybrid, online, and in-person classes to provide flexibility, accessibility, and enhanced learning experiences.
- Pre-requisites: high school algebra, biology and chemistry or its equivalent.
- Applicants may be required to have an interview with the program director.
- All students who are accepted into the Program are required to provide a valid Basic Life Support (CPR) certification. This requirement must be fulfilled within the first semester of admission to the Program.
- All students are responsible for their own transportation to and from the clinical sites.
- Students are required to have a background check and drug screening.
- Students in the Cardiovascular Technology Program are strongly encouraged to take a credentialing exam review course at the end of their senior year.
- Cardiovascular Technology coursework from other institutions is NOT eligible for transfer to the Molloy University Cardiovascular Technology Program.

GRADING CRITERIA FOR PROGRESSION

- A student must have an overall 2.5 Cumulative Index prior to beginning Cardiovascular Technology major courses.
- A grade of "B-" or better is necessary for all Cardiovascular Technology major courses.
- A grade of "C+" or better is necessary for all related requirement courses.
- Students who do not follow the designed course progression and have a one or two semester lapse between clinical rotations, due to a need to repeat a course or a leave of absence, will be required to successfully complete challenge examinations and demonstrate clinical competence prior to enrolling in another clinical course. The need for such examinations will be determined on an individual basis. Please consult with the Clinical Coordinator.

The following policies apply when a student attains a grade below "B-" in CVT courses and below "C+" in related requirements:

- CVT and related requirement courses may be repeated one time. Failure to attain the minimum grade for
 the second time will necessitate withdrawal from the Program. Withdrawing from a course constitutes an
 attempt.
- Clinical CVT courses may be repeated once with the permission of the Program Director. A subsequent failure to achieve a "B-" in any other clinical necessitates withdrawal from the Program.
- A maximum of two different CVT courses may be repeated in the major. A failure to achieve a "B-" in a third CVT course will result in dismissal from the Program.
- Students who have been dismissed due to academic failure may not be readmitted to the CVT Program.

Students who left the Cardiovascular Technology Program in good standing and who are requesting readmission to the program are required to meet the following conditions for reinstatement:

- Clinical coursework completed more than three years ago in Molloy University's Cardiovascular Technology Program must be repeated. The need for repetition of nonclinical course will be determined on an individual basis.
- Readmission to the Cardiovascular Technology Program for students who have taken Molloy University
 Cardiovascular Technology clinical courses within the past three-year period may require that students
 successfully complete challenge examinations and demonstrate clinical competence. The need for such
 examinations will be determined on an individual basis.

Students who do not follow the designed course progression and have a one or two semester lapse between clinical rotations, due to a need to repeat a course or a leave of absence, will be required to successfully complete challenge examinations and demonstrate clinical competence prior to enrolling in another clinical course. The need for such examinations will be determined on an individual basis by the Clinical Coordinator and Program Director.

Cardiovascular Technology coursework from other institutions is NOT eligible for transfer to the Molloy University's Cardiovascular Technology Program.

NOTE: The Cardiovascular Technology Program reserves the right to make necessary program alterations in response to changes in professional cardiovascular practice and/or the health care delivery system.

HEALTH REQUIREMENTS

Clearance for Clinical Placements

In addition to other clinical clearance requirements, Allied Health Sciences' students must complete a drug test and initial background check through the program's approved vendor, prior to participating in clinical learning experiences. Clearance requirements vary by clinical site and are subject to change at any time. Students are responsible for all costs associated with the drug test and background check, along with all other clinical clearance procedures. Students entering the clinical sequence of an Allied Health Sciences' program curriculum will be informed as to the timeline and deadline for completion of all clinical clearance requirements.

Students must be aware that clinical placement sites reserve the right to deny, in their sole discretion, a student's clinical placement based upon the results of the background check, drug screening, noncompliance with safety or vaccination requirements, or other site-specific requirements. Procedures related to clearance for clinical experiences are documented in each respective Allied Health Sciences' program student handbooks. The Molloy University Barbara H. Hagan School of Nursing and Health Sciences ("The School") is not responsible for the clinical ineligibility of any student for any reason, including but not limited to whether a history of conviction, potential drug use, or to other circumstances which were disclosed to the School of the University prior to the student's matriculation. If a student's clinical placement at a clinical site is denied, the School does not guarantee the availability of an alternative clinical placement. The School or University is under no obligation to affirmatively seek out additional clinical placement sites that may be willing to accept a student who has been denied a clinical placement. If a student cannot be placed in an established clinical site for any reason, including, but not limited to, a failed background check or drug test, clinical clearance, or other finding, he/she will not be able to complete the Allied Health Sciences' program and will therefore be removed and dismissed from the Allied Health Sciences' program.

NOTE: The Cardiovascular Technology Program reserves the right to make necessary program alterations in response to changes in professional cardiovascular technology practice and/or the healthcare delivery system.

TITLE IX

Title IX is a federal civil rights law that prohibits discrimination in education:

"No person in the United States shall, on the basis of sex, be excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under an educational program or activity receiving federal financial assistance." Any person who believes that discriminatory practices have been engaged in based upon gender may discuss their concerns and file informal or formal complaints of the possible violation of Title IX with the Title IX Coordinator at Molloy University, Lisa Miller, Director of Human Resources, Kellenberg Hall, Room 112. The telephone number is 516-323-3046.

NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY

Molloy University admits students without regard to age, race, color, sex, religion, national or ethnic origin, or physical and/or learning disability to all the rights, privileges, programs, and activities generally accorded or made available to students at the University. It does not discriminate on the basis of age, race, color, sex, religion, national or ethnic origin, or physical and/or learning disability in the administration of its educational policies, admissions policies, scholarship, loan programs, athletic, and other University-administered programs. Inquiries concerning these policies may be referred to Lisa Miller, Human Resources Director, Kellenberg Hall, Room 112. The telephone number is 516-323-3046.

ADA AND REHABILITATION ACT

In compliance with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 and its amendments, Molloy University provides reasonable accommodations and services upon request to individuals with documentation supporting a covered disability or chronic illness. The ADA/Section 504 Coordinator at Molloy University is Cari Rose-Tomo in the William J. Casey Center, Room C011. The telephone number is 516-323-3315.

DSS/STEEP - DISABILITY SUPPORT SERVICES/SUCCESS THROUGH EXPANDED EDUCATION PROGRAM

Molloy University provides a supportive environment for students with documented disabilities and is committed to complying with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), ADA Amendments Act (ADAAA) of 2008 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Students who are requesting accommodations and services must contact the DSS/STEEP office to initiate the process. Students are required to provide documentation, from a qualified professional, of their disability or chronic illness and to

discuss how reasonable accommodations may assist them in fulfilling course requirements and participating in campus life. Determination of reasonable accommodations is an ongoing and interactive process. Students have the choice of whether or not to utilize accommodations. Students who have injuries, surgeries, or other conditions which will temporarily restrict them on campus, may contact DSS/STEEP to arrange for reasonable short-term accommodations. Documentation will be required.

DSS/STEEP also provides services to assist students in various areas of campus life. Appointments are scheduled on an as-needed basis to determine which individual and/or group services may be appropriate. For more information, contact the staff at 516-323-3315 or dss@molloy.edu. Accommodations and services are designed to equalize opportunities and access, not to lower the academic standard for these students or to alter the essential nature of the degree requirements.

TUTORING SERVICES

Tutoring Services assists students in achieving their academic potential in math, science, and modern languages. Assistance in other disciplines is provided according to students' individual needs and based upon availability.

Tutees receive two kinds of assistance:

- 1. Remedial When failing a course or below "C" in a major field
- 2. Supplemental When passing a course but in need of reinforcement or clarification in particular aspects of the course work

Academic Tutors fall into three categories:

- 1. Professional: Active/semi-retired individuals certified in the courses they tutor
- 2. Graduate: Individuals who have a graduate or undergraduate degree from Molloy University or another college or university
- 3. Peer: Students who have taken and successfully passed the course(s) they tutor

FERPA RIGHTS

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) affords eligible students certain rights with respect to their education records.

As a member of Molloy University, Catholic and Dominican in tradition, I dedicate myself to the ideals of truth, scholarship, and justice. I pledge to demonstrate personal and academic integrity in all matters. I promise to be honest and accountable for my actions and to uphold the honor system to better myself and those around me. I will refrain from any form of academic dishonesty or deception. Ratified by the Molloy University community, spring 2000, ad hoc Committee on Academic Integrity, a subcommittee of Undergraduate Academic Policies and Programs Committee.

STATEMENT OF ACADEMIC INTEGRITY

The administration and faculty of the Department of Allied Health Sciences believe that academic integrity is one of the most important values and behaviors that should be practiced by students during their academic and clinical education. Integrity and honesty are especially valued in the health care professions because accurate diagnosis and treatment of patients are greatly dependent upon a health practitioner's honest and capable assessment of symptoms and diagnostic tests. This assessment can only be rendered by a practitioner who has "real" knowledge because, as a student, he or she independently answered test questions and were required to participate in detailed laboratory skills assessments, thereby identifying and correcting mistakes. The successful practitioner can communicate important diagnostic and therapeutic information in writing because, as a student, such skills were developed and/or enhanced by completing writing assignments independently. The practitioner who was dishonest in his or her educational pursuits is at great risk for making diagnostic and therapeutic mistakes. Such errors may result in the mismanagement of a patient's health. Because we are committed to educating practitioners who provide the highest quality of health care, the university administration and faculty are equally committed to mandating and enforcing the practice of academic integrity by all students.

Molloy University is an independent comprehensive university, Catholic and Dominican in tradition and dedicated to academic excellence. Genuine commitment to excellence is the fundamental purpose of a university community and demands responsible standards of scholarship, teaching and learning. By seeking to promote an atmosphere of trust and dialogue, Molloy University intends to foster goodwill among its Faculty, Students, and Administrators. Within the framework of a liberal arts core, Molloy University is concerned not only with critical and creative thinking, but also with the virtuous formation of character. Of essential importance to Molloy University is Academic Integrity which confirms our common responsibility for fulfilling the goals of education.

Certain guidelines of Academic Integrity need to be specified in order to enhance the traditional relationship between faculty and students involved in their sincere pursuit to attain excellence. The professional and legal rights of all members within the university community are to be recognized and upheld with the highest standards of mutual respect and honesty. Continuous effort must be made by the community to share accountability on the various levels of academic concerns.

It is incumbent upon the faculty to provide an environment of Academic Integrity and to fulfill all professional responsibilities, which include but are not limited to the following:

- Distributing and reviewing course outline
- Meeting classes as scheduled and making appropriate preparations for all class sessions
- Providing an atmosphere conducive to serious and scholarly study
- Encouraging students to fulfill their potential
- Respecting the dignity of students
- Grading assignments, tests, and papers within a reasonable amount of time and by criteria mutually understandable and acceptable within the field of study
- Using academic evaluations based on unbiased professional judgment
- Being available for appointments with students

These professional responsibilities are the criteria used for a grade appeal. It is expected that students fulfill their responsibilities within the University community by:

- attending and being prepared for scheduled class meetings
- complying with course requirements as stated in course outline

It is also expected that administrators fulfill their responsibilities with the University community by:

- promoting an atmosphere of trust and integrity
- lending support to the accomplishments of the academic goals and objectives of both students and faculty

HONOR PLEDGE

As a member of Molloy University, Catholic and Dominican in tradition, I dedicate myself to the ideals of truth, scholarship, and justice. I pledge to demonstrate personal and academic integrity in all matters. I promise to be honest and accountable for my actions and to uphold the honor system to better myself and those around me. I will refrain from any form of academic dishonesty or deception.

Ratified by the Molloy University community, spring 2000, ad hoc Committee on Academic Integrity, a subcommittee of Undergraduate Academic Policies and Programs Committee.

ACADEMIC INFRACTIONS SUBJECT TO DISCIPLINARY ACTION

Engaging in any form of academic dishonesty is an Academic Infraction Subject to Disciplinary Action (AISDA). Students are responsible for knowing the policies regarding cheating, plagiarism, facilitating academic dishonesty, and fabrication, as well as the penalties for such behavior. Academic Infractions Subject to Disciplinary Action include:

A. Cheating - utilizing a source other than self during an exam or in completing an assignment.

- B. Fabrication intentional and unauthorized falsification or invention of any information.
- C. Facilitating academic dishonesty intentionally or knowingly helping or attempting to help someone commit an act of academic dishonesty. For example, allowing another to copy from you during an examination, doing work for another and allowing her/him to represent it as her/his own, and supplying information regarding examinations to others.
- D. Plagiarism failure to document the direct words of another or the rephrasing of another's words so as to represent them as one's own; handing in another's paper or project as one's own; or reusing your own paper from another course without the prior instructor approval.

DUE PROCESS PROCEDURE IN ACADEMIC AREAS

The President, who is the Chief Executive Officer of the University, delegates the supervision of student conduct and discipline in academic areas to the Associate Dean for Academic Services.

PROCEDURE

- 1. All persons concerned should first make every effort to resolve the matter through informal consultation with the Associate Dean for Academic Services to reach an acceptable solution short of the use of the formal procedure. In the event that there is no resolution at this level or no acceptance by the student of the discipline meted out by the Associate Dean for Academic Services, formal proceedings may be initiated provided a written charge against the student is filed by the complainant on the official AISDA Complaint Form which can be found in the Office of the Associate Dean for Academic Services. The Associate Dean for Academic Services may also elect to initiate formal proceedings in those situations serious enough to warrant the use of these formal channels for disciplinary action.
- 2. Upon the filing of such a written charge, the Associate Dean for Academic Services gives written notification to the student of the charges and the general nature of the evidence to support these charges. The student must be notified within twenty-one (21) calendar days of the complaint of the offense in question.
- 3. The student has fourteen (14) calendar days after receipt of the formal notification to answer the charges in writing. She/he may choose to:
 - A. Not initiate a formal procedure and accept the discipline of the Associate Dean for Academic Services. This option is not available when the formal proceeding has been initiated by the Associate Dean for Academic Services
 - B. Waive her/his defense at the hearing before a Judicial Committee
 - C. Appear before the Judicial Committee
 - D. Withdraw from the University
- 4. The Judicial Committee shall be composed of two faculty members chosen by the Faculty President, two students chosen by MSG President, or, in the event of a graduate student hearing, by the Department, and one appropriate administrator chosen by the Associate Dean for Academic Services. The Associate Dean for Academic Services shall serve as chairperson for the committee, with no vote except in the case of a tie. A majority vote of the judicial committee will make the decision.
- 5. The Associate Dean for Academic Services will notify the accused and complainant of the composition of the committee. If any member of the committee is unacceptable to either the accused or the complainant, that party must notify the Associate Dean for Academic Services within three (3) days of receiving this information. Each party is limited to two (2) objections. Members of the Committee are expected to be impartial, to seriously consider the facts of the case, and to avoid imposition of sanctions against any participants in the process.
- 6. In the event that the charges in the academic dishonesty case are not sustained by the Judicial Committee, then, based on the information presented and the decision reached during the hearing, this Committee would be empowered to request a grade change from the faculty member concerned with the work or course in question in accordance with the course outline that is on file in the office of the Associate Dean for Academic Services. Should the faculty member not wish to comply, the term paper, test or other project in question is to be given to the Associate Dean for Academic Services to be re- graded by a qualified scholar of her choice. After the work in question has been re-graded, the Committee will reconvene to calculate the student's grade which,

when filed, will be the grade for such work.

7. If the accused student chooses not to appear before the Judicial Committee, this committee will weigh the evidence and hand down a decision.

RIGHTS OF STUDENTS IN DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS

For any disciplinary action for which sanctions may be imposed, the student shall have the right to:

- 1. be considered innocent until found guilty, by clear and convincing evidence, of academic dishonesty.
- 2. be informed of his/her rights.
- 3. receive written, timely and complete notice of the specific charges to be resolved.
- 4. seek advice and/or counsel. If any attorney-at-law is chosen, this attorney may not participate directly in the proceedings.
- 5. have fair disposition of all matters as promptly as possible under the circumstances.
- 6. elect to have a public or private hearing.
- 7. hold unaltered student status pending a final adjudication and disposition of all matters, except in extraordinary circumstances.
- 8. be informed of the maximum and minimum sanctions which may be imposed.
- 9. be informed of the general nature of the evidence to be presented.
- 10. confront and question all parties and witnesses except when extraordinary circumstances make this impossible.
- 11. present a factual defense through witnesses, personal testimony, and other relevant evidence.
- 12. suggest questions which might be put to witnesses.
- 13. decline to testify against oneself.
- 14. have only relevant evidence considered by the Judicial Committee.
- 15. be informed of all decisions within 14 calendar days of the conclusion of the hearing.
- 16. request an appeal of the disciplinary sanction of suspension from the Vice President for Academic Affairs and request an appeal of the disciplinary sanction of dismissal from the President of the University. Students are to notify the Associate Dean for Academic Services to file an appeal.
- 17. be free from repeated disciplinary proceedings where the parties and the issues are the same.

FORMAL HEARING

- 1. The accused student has the right to have the hearing before the Judicial Committee. The accused student chooses whether the hearing is to be private or public.
- 2. At the hearing before the Judicial Committee, both the accused and the complainant may have the advisor or counsel of their choice present; however, the advisor or counsel may not participate directly in their proceedings.
- 3. It will be the policy of the University that a record of the hearing shall be taped.
- 4. Both the accused and complainant have the right to cross- examine all witnesses.
- 5. After the presentation of both the accused and the complainant, the committee shall deliberate in private until a decision is reached. When a decision has been reached, the hearing shall be reconvened, and the decision announced.
- 6. If a decision is entered against an accused, the Committee shall recommend the imposition of disciplinary and restitutionary sanctions which may include:
 - A. Disciplinary Warning: A written statement from the Associate Dean for Academic Services expressing disapproval of conduct. No record of the Disciplinary Warning shall be maintained in the student's file.
 - B. Disciplinary Reprimand: A written statement from the Associate Dean for Academic Services expressing disapproval of conduct. A record of this disciplinary reprimand shall be maintained in the student's folder in the Office of the Associate Dean for Academic Services for the length of time the student attends the University. This record may be introduced in subsequent disciplinary proceedings.
 - C. Disciplinary Probation: A conditional retention of student status for a specified period of time.

- During the probationary period, a student is excluded from participation in any extracurricular activities of the University and may not hold any appointed or elected positions.
- D. Disciplinary Suspension: A termination of registration as a student for a specified period of time. During the period of suspension, a student is excluded from classes and all other University privileges and activities. A record of the Disciplinary Suspension shall be maintained in the student's folder in the Office of the Associate Dean for Academic Services and made a permanent part of this folder. This record may be introduced in subsequent proceedings.
- E. Disciplinary Dismissal: A termination of registration of a student. If the student applies for readmission, she/ he will not be allowed to return to the University. A record of this Disciplinary Dismissal shall be maintained in the student's folder as a permanent record in the Office of the Associate Dean for Academic Services.
- F. Substituted Sanction: A constructive and voluntary undertaking by a student which by agreement with the Judicial Committee, shall be substituted for any of the above sanctions. A record of this substituted sanction shall be maintained in the student's folder in the Office of the Associate Dean for Academic Services for the length of time the student attends the University. If the substituted sanction is not satisfactorily completed, the Judicial Committee shall reinstate the original sanction.
- G. Partial credit for the exercise involved.
- H. Score of zero on the particular exercise involved.
- I. Failure of the course.

APPEAL

Students who want to appeal the sanction of suspension or dismissal should notify the Associate Dean for Academic Services.

- 1. Students have the right to petition the President of the University for an appeal from a disciplinary sanction of the Judicial Committee resulting in dismissal from the University. The President will review the evidence as presented to her/him by the Judicial Committee and will make her/his decision after review of the case in question.
- 2. Students have the right to petition the Vice President for Academic Affairs for an appeal from a disciplinary sanction of the Judicial Committee resulting in suspension from the University. The Vice President for Academic Affairs will review the evidence as presented to her/him by the Judicial Committee and will make her/his decision after the review of the case in question.

DISCIPLINARY DISMISSAL/DISCIPLINARY SUSPENSION

Even in the absence of a student appeal, any sanction of Disciplinary Dismissal handed down by the Judicial Committee always requires administrative review and approval by the President of the University and may be altered, deferred, or suspended by the President.

POLICY CONCERNING GRADE APPEALS

MOLLOY UNIVERSITY

The Barbara H. Hagan School of Nursing and Health Sciences

ACADEMIC REVIEW PROCESS

Students share responsibility for their learning and are expected to meet program and course requirements.

Students are entitled to timely, fair, and equitable evaluation of their academic work. A student who has a question or issue regarding grading may initiate the Academic Review Process.

INFORMAL PROCESS

Step One:

A student who has an academic issue meets with the faculty concerned. The intent of this meeting is to discuss the academic problem and together seek resolution.

The student has the option to move to <u>Step Two</u> if there is failure to obtain a satisfactory agreement.

Step Two:

A meeting between the student, faculty and Associate Dean & Director is held in a second attempt to reach resolution.

The student has the option to move to <u>Step Three</u> if there is failure to solve the problem.

FORMAL PROCESS

Step Three:

- a. The student submits a completed <u>Academic Review Form</u> to the Dean, School of Nursing and Health Sciences.
- b. A formal meeting is held with:
 - Dean
 - Associate Dean or Department Chair
 - Faculty member
 - Student
- c. The student may select to be accompanied by a non-legal support person.
- d. The student has the option to move to <u>Step Four</u> if there is a failure to obtain a satisfactory resolution.

Step Four:

If there are grounds for a subsequent formal grade appeal per university policy, the student may implement the Molloy University Grade Appeal Process. Refer to the **Molloy University College Undergraduate/Graduate Student Handbook and Calendar.** It is the responsibility of the student to obtain the instructions and to observe the deadlines for filing an appeal. **NOTE THE UNIVERSITY'S TIMEFRAME for submitting appeals.**

Revised 8-2023

Molloy University The Barbara H. Hagan School of Nursing and Health Sciences Academic Review Form

Student Name	Today's date		Student ID
Program and level -check all that apply	Course number, sectio	n, and cou	irse name
☐ Undergraduate student			
☐ Graduate student			
Nursing			
☐ SLP			
☐ Respiratory Care			
☐ Nuclear Medicine			
☐ Cardiovascular Technology			
Status of academic concern			
Student has met with faculty member regarding concern.	g the academic		
Faculty member's name:		Date of me	eeting
	٦		
Outcome of meeting with faculty member	_		
Student met together with faculty member and		or	
Department Chair for the program, to resolve t	he concern.		Date of
Names of individuals at meeting	_		meeting
Outcome of meeting among student, faculty me	ember and Associate De	ean or Chai	ir

Formal Academic Review Mediation
Clearly describe the specific academic issue to be addressed
Provide evidence to support the claim. May include attachments as relevant
Indicate requested resolution or outcome
Sign form by typing your name and date, attesting that the information above is accurate and true.

For SONHS use only			
	comments		
O resolution			
no basis for action or change			
O referred			
Signature		Date	
	200		

ATTENDANCE

The policy on attendance is one of "responsible attendance." Students are expected to attend all classes, laboratory sessions, and clinical assignments regularly and punctually. First semester freshmen students are limited to three absences in a course. All other students should refer to the attendance policy as stated in the course syllabus. This is also described in the current University Undergraduate Catalog. Students are to notify the Office of the Vice President for Student Affairs, located on the third floor of the Public Square Building if they will be absent from classes so this information can be brought to the attention of their instructors.

It is the accepted practice at Molloy University that faculty take attendance in all courses.

- Students should notify faculty if an absence is necessary as the result of a serious situation.
- Failure to attend class for two (2) consecutive weeks at any point in the semester, without notification of extenuating circumstances, will result in an administrative withdrawal from the course.
- Administrative withdrawal results in removal from the course with a grade of "W".
- Students should consult the University catalog for complete details regarding withdrawals and the potential financial implications of a withdrawal.

Religious Observances - A student who is to be absent from class because of a religious obligation or practice, should inform the instructor in writing at least one week before the day. The student has the right to make up any examination, study, or work requirements which may have been missed because of religious observances.

GRADING POLICY

(Effective Fall 2000)

A student's scholastic standing is determined by an evaluation of grades attained. Each credit hour has a quality equivalent. The student's index equals the total number of quality points divided by the total number of credit hours for which the student has received quality points.

GRADES:

A	93.0-100	4.0 quality points
A-	90.0-92.9	3.7 quality points
B+	87.0-89.9	3.3 quality points
В	83.0-86.9	3.0 quality points
В-	80.0-82.9	2.7 quality points
C+	77.0–79.9	2.3 quality points
C	73.0–76.9	2.0 quality points
C-	70.0-72.9	1.7 quality points
D+	67.0-69.9	1.3 quality points
D	60.0-66.9	1.0 quality points
F	Below 60.0	0.0 quality points

- Failure Student attended the course and failed
- I Incomplete Computed as failure: Some requirement of the course is lacking (Automatically becomes an "F" if requirement is not met within specified time)
- W Withdrawn Student officially withdrew before Finals (No credits and no quality

points earned)

WITHDRAWAL FROM COURSES

Withdrawals – Each semester the Registrar's Office posts a strict deadline to withdraw with a grade of "W" that is on the academic calendar. Several majors have their own withdrawal policies that supersede all others and students must refer to their major's handbook. See Section G below (Withdrawal and Separation) for more information.

Administrative Withdrawals

Students determined to have never attended a course are reported to the Registrar's Office during the first two weeks of the semester and dropped from the course, removing it from the student's record. An email notification is sent to the student after the drop is processed.

Students who stop attending a course for two consecutive weeks at any point in the semester will be administratively withdrawn by the faculty, and the faculty will enter the withdrawal grade (W) as the student's final grade. An email notification is sent to the student after the W is processed.

Since grades are under the purview of the faculty, faculty may grant permission for a student to reverse the drop/withdrawal when it is found that an error occurred with issuing the withdrawal or when extenuating circumstances contributed to the withdrawal. If the student requests and the faculty agrees to reinstate the student, both faculty and student must complete a learning contract documenting how the student can successfully complete the class. Requests for reinstatements with a completed learning contract should be directed to the Office of Student Success within 10 business days from the date the student was notified of the drop/withdrawal. Approved requests will be submitted to the Registrar's Office for processing.

The last date of attendance is computed by the faculty and must be submitted within 14 days of the student's last time attending or participating, or when entering the final course grade. An administrative withdrawal grade may affect financial aid and deferments.

Consequences

Students choosing to voluntarily withdraw from courses or stop attending should consider the consequences before completing the withdrawal process.

Withdrawing from courses may change the student's full-time or half-time standing and may require the return of Title IV financial aid funds and could affect the grace or deferment period for repayment of loans, including Federal Loans. Loan grace periods use the last date of attendance. Future eligibility for aid programs such as TAP is affected by not progressing toward the degree as planned. (For financial aid policies and refunds, see catalog section on "Financial Aid" and "Expenses.") See the Financial Aid Website for more details.

Withdrawing from a course may also affect the student's progression towards a degree. Students who voluntarily withdraw or stop attending a course should discuss the consequences with an advisor. The Office of Student Success and Assessment can also be contacted for students in need of academic support services such as tutoring, counseling, or other services.

Complete Withdrawal from All Courses

Students withdrawing from all courses are required to submit the "Separation from University" form and the "Financial Aid Withdrawal Consequences" form found in Lion's Den. Students may opt to take one to two academic semesters leave or notify the university that they are not returning.

TECHNICAL STANDARDS IN CARDIOVASCULAR TECHNOLOGY

The Molloy University Cardiovascular Technology Program is accredited by the Commission on Accreditation of Allied Health Education Programs (CAAHEP), a programmatic postsecondary accrediting agency recognized by the Council for Higher Education Accreditation (CHEA) located at 1361 Park Street, Clearwater, Florida, through the Joint Review Committee on Education in Cardiovascular Technology (JRCCVT), located at 1449 Hill Street, Whitinsville, Massachusetts 01588-1032. The program is also approved by the New York State Department of Education. Molloy University is accredited by Middle States Commission on Higher Education.

Students preparing for a career in Cardiovascular Technology are expected to perform therapeutic and diagnostic techniques safely and accurately. Students must be able to perform within the scope of practice as outlined in national and state standards, including:

A cardiovascular technologist is typically employed in a hospital, clinic, or with a mobile service to provide diagnostic procedures and direct patient care. Clinical and laboratory assignments for students enrolled in cardiovascular technology programs require certain physical demands that are the technical standards for admission. These standards are based upon the minimum tasks performed by graduates of the program as recommended by the Society of Diagnostic Medical Sonography (SDMS) and the American Society of Radiologic Technologists (ASRT).

Listed below are the technical standards that all applicants must meet in order to participate in, and complete, the Cardiovascular Technology Program.

- 1. Sufficient visual acuity to read sonography prescriptions & patient charts, observe conditions of the patient & evaluate sonographic images
- 2. Sufficient auditory perception to receive verbal communication from patients and members of the healthcare team to obtain and record an accurate patient history and to assess the health needs of people through the use of monitoring devices such as intercom systems, cardiac monitors, respiratory monitors, fire alarms, etc.
- 3. Sufficient gross and fine motor coordination to respond promptly and to implement skills related to the performance of sonographic imaging examinations and/or cardiovascular procedures, such as positioning and transporting patients and obtaining diagnostic images. Sonographers must be able to manipulate sonographic equipment in order to achieve diagnostic images
- 4. Sufficient communication skills (verbal, reading, writing) to interact with individuals and to communicate their needs promptly and effectively, as may be necessary in the patient's/client's interest, collaborate with physicians and other members of the health care team, and provide an oral or written summary of the technical findings to the physician for medical diagnosis
- 5. Sufficient intellectual and emotional function to plan and implement quality patient care, analyze technical information, and use independent judgment in recognizing the need to extend the scope of the procedure according to the diagnostic findings.

Examples of specific technical standards required for cardiovascular technology students:

- Lift, transfer and/or assist patients from wheelchair/stretcher to examination table
- Lift, move, reach, push or pull equipment
- Manual dexterity and ability to bend/stretch
- Have full use of both hands, wrists and shoulders
- Work standing on their feet 80% of the time
- Adequately view sonograms, including color distinctions and shades of gray
- Distinguish audible sounds
- Organize and accurately perform the individual steps in a sonographic procedure in the proper sequence
- Demonstrate effective interpersonal relation skills, including patient instruction
- Interact compassionately and effectively with the sick or injured
- Read and extract information from the medical chart or patient requisitions
- Explain the clinical study verbally and/or in writing

Students having a past criminal record must declare this situation at the time of admission. Certain types of criminal offenses may result in an inability to receive professional licensure and job offers upon graduation. **Before starting the program**, students in this situation must speak with the Program Director to determine the extent of possible future difficulties with this issue.

REMEDIATION

Molloy University utilizes a Mid-Semester Appraisal System to assist students in identifying weaknesses and to direct students to resources for remediation:

Midsemester Performance Appraisal:				
	Excessive Absence		Unsatisfactory Performance	
	Weak in Content Area		Failing at this Point	
Missing:				
	Class		Homework	
	Exams		Paper	
	Test		Lab Report	
	Quiz		Essay	
	Oral Presentation		Service Learning Contract	
	Speech		Journal Critique	
Recommendations:				
	Ask Questions	☐ Skil	Use CD Interactive Video for Different	
	Participate in Class/Clinical		Use Study Guides	
	Speak with Instructor		Participate at Clinical Site	
	Review Materials		Makeup Exam	
	Complete Assignments	Befo	Hand in Homework and Papers ore Deadline.	
	Put More Quality Time and			
Effor	t into Class		Review Materials Before Class	
Stud	Meet with Instructor to Review y Skills		Please Consider Withdrawing	
Referrals:				
	Tutoring		Go to Lab	
	Writing Resource Center		Go to Student Assistance Program	
	Join Group Study		Go to Language Research Center	
Add	itional Comments:		22 12 <u>23.19</u> 4499 1100041011 0011101	

In addition to this system, faculty will recommend students seek remediation through attendance in **Open Laboratory times**; to remediate deficits in psychomotor skills identifies through lab and clinical performance evaluations.

FACULTY ADVISING AND OFFICE HOURS

All students in the Cardiovascular Technology Program are assigned a faculty advisor. Please consult with your advisor first regarding all academic and non-academic issues. Your advisor will refer you for additional assistance, as needed. Please email your faculty advisor for an appointment.

Please contact the CVT Clinical Coordinator for all issues regarding clinical rotations and medical clearance requirements.

If you have a concern with any of the Departmental faculty or staff, please make an appointment with the Chairperson of the Allied Health Sciences Department to discuss your concerns.

MEMBERSHIP IN PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION

Students are required to apply for student membership in the Society of Diagnostic Medical Sonography (SDMS). Membership in the SDMS is a vital component of being a professional member of this field. Benefits of student membership include access to electronic media, subscriptions to the journal, and significantly discounted admission fees at national, state, and local symposiums (Society of Diagnostic Medical Sonography, 2745 Dallas Parkway, Suite 350, Plano, TX 75093-8730, Phone 214-473-8057, www.sdms.org).

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Students are not permitted to share electronic files previously obtained from the faculty with anyone for any reason, including other students. Any student who is in possession of any electronic file previously obtained from a faculty member without that faculty member's permission is to destroy it immediately after having notified the faculty member that it was surreptitiously obtained.

STUDENT ACTIVITIES

Students are encouraged to participate in orientation programs, recruitment functions, social and cultural events, Open House, and Career Days. Students have the opportunity to represent students' viewpoints on the Program, School, and University committees.

STUDENT AWARDS

Students are eligible to receive multiple awards from the Program:

- The Sister Mary Denis McAuliffe Scholarship recognizes the student who achieves the highest GPA, demonstrates outstanding scholastic achievement, exemplary professionalism, and a compassionate demeanor.
- The Cardiovascular Technology Academic and Clinical Excellence Award recognizes the student who has demonstrated both academic excellence and clinical proficiency, a positive attitude, and a consistent, caring demeanor toward fellow students and faculty.

PROFESSIONAL SOCIETIES

Students are strongly encouraged to participate in professional activities and to seek memberships in national, state, and local societies which sponsor student competitions.

Student memberships are offered by the following organizations:

- American Institute of Ultrasound in Medicine (AIUM)
- American Society of Echocardiography (ASE)
- American Society of Radiologic Technologists (ASRT)
- Society of Diagnostic Medical Sonography (SDMS)
- Society for Vascular Ultrasound (SVU)

SUMMER CLINICAL COURSEWORK

The curriculum for the Cardiovascular Technology program includes required clinical courses that run in the summers following both the first and second year. Students must pay separate tuition and fees for these two summer sessions. These sessions are not included in either the fall or spring semester tuition bills and are considered separate summer sessions.

CARDIOVASCULAR TECHNOLOGY - A.A.S. DEGREE COURSE REQUIREMENTS

New York State Registered Program Code: 22387

HEGIS Code: 5207.00 {Radiologic Technologies [X-Ray, Etc.]}

Molloy Program of Study Code: CVTAP

General Education Requirements: Acceptable courses listed under General Education Requirements - (4 credits needed) See **NOTE**

ENG 1100 College Composition	3
PED General Education Course	1
Major CVT Requirements (50 credits):	
CVT 1080 Introduction to Cardiovascular Technology	5
CVT 1500 Cardiovascular Pharmacology	2
CVT 2020 Ultrasound Physics I	2 3 3
CVT 2030 Ultrasound Physics II	3
CVT 2100 Cardiovascular Physiology I	3
CVT 2110 Clinical Cardiovascular Medicine	3 2 3
CVT 2120 Cardiovascular Physiology II	3
CVT 2130 Clinical Cardiovascular Experience I	4
CVT 2150 Clinical Cardiovascular Experience II	5
CVT 2200 Clinical Cardiovascular Experience III	6
CVT 2210 Cardiovascular Clinical Practicum I	5
CVT 2400 Cardiovascular Clinical Practicum II	6
CVT 2570 Cardiovascular Scientific Research	3
D. 1. 1. 1. 1. (40 11.)	
Related Requirements (18 credits):	
BIO 1200 Anatomy and Physiology I	4
BIO 1210 Anatomy and Physiology II	4
CHE 1090 Fundamentals of Chemistry	1
ETH 2880 Ethics and Health Care	3
MAT 1180 Pre-Calculus	3
PHY 1600 Physics for the Health Sciences	3
EST Doggiuomont	
FST Requirement:	0.1
FST 1000 College Experience (If required)	0-1
Total:	72 - 73

NOTE: The General Education requirement is 13, and has been adjusted to 4, because the following Related Requirements will also satisfy the General Education requirement: ETH 2880; MAT 1160; PHY1600.

CARDIOVASCULAR TECHNOLOGY COURSE DESCRIPTIONS

CVT 1080 INTRODUCTION TO CARDIOVASCULAR TECHNOLOGY

An introduction to the field of cardiovascular technology designed to prepare the student for entry into the clinical setting. Includes patient care, medical terminology, medical ethics and law, professionalism and cultural competence as well as practical utilization of echocardiography and peripheral vascular procedures. Includes a laboratory component.

Corequisites: BIO 1200, CVT 2020, PHY 1600. (Offered Fall) 5 credits

CVT 1500 CARDIOVASCULAR PHARMACOLOGY

A basic study of pharmacology pertaining to cardiovascular drugs. (Offered Spring) **2 credits**

CVT 2020 ULTRASOUND PHYSICS I

An introduction to the study of diagnostic medical ultrasound physics, emphasizing mathematics, sound wave characteristics and propagation, attenuation, pulsed wave operation, transducers, and system operation.

Corequisites: BIO 1200, CVT 1080, PHY 1600 (Offered Fall) 3 credits

CVT 2030 ULTRASOUND PHYSICS II

An advanced study of diagnostic medical ultrasound physics emphasizing spectral and color Doppler applications, artifacts, bioeffects and safety, contrast and harmonics, quality assurance, fluid dynamics, hemodynamics, and focused ultrasound.

Pre-requisites: BIO 1200, CVT 1080, CVT 2020, PHY 1600

Corequisites: BIO 1210, CVT 2130, CVT 2100, MAT 1160 (Offered Spring) 3 credits

CVT 2100 CARDIOVASCULAR PHYSIOLOGY I

An introduction to the study of the normal structure and function of the cardiovascular system, including cellular structure and function, the circulatory system, hemodynamics, electrophysiology, cardiac function, the cardiac cycle, cardiac output and the regulation of cardiovascular function.

Prerequisite: BIO 1200, CVT 1080, CVT 2020, PHY 1600

Corequisites: BIO 1210, CVT 2030, CVT 2130, MAT 1160 (Offered Spring) 3 credits

CVT 2110 CLINICAL CARDIOVASCULAR MEDICINE

An in-depth study of cardiovascular pathology and related diseases, including signs, symptoms and treatment options.

Prerequisite: CVT 2210.

Corequisites: CVT 2120, CVT 2150. (Offered Fall) 2 credits

CVT 2120 CARDIOVASCULAR PHYSIOLOGY II

An advanced study of the normal structure and function of the cardiovascular system including vascular function, arterial and venous blood pressure, systemic vascular resistance, response to exercise, neurohumoral control, blood flow distribution and microcirculation.

Prerequisite: CVT 2210.

Corequisites: BIO 2110, CVT 2150. (Offered Fall) 3 credits

CVT 2130 CLINICAL CARDIOVASCULAR EXPERIENCE I

A study integrating basic cardiovascular principles and techniques for various practical applications. This course includes a laboratory and a 2 day per week clinical component.

Prerequisites: BIO 1200, CVT 1080, CVT 2020, PHY 1600.

Corequisites: BIO1210, CVT 2030, CVT 2100, MAT 1160. (Offered Spring) 4 credits

CVT 2150 CLINICAL CARDIOVASCULAR EXPERIENCE II

A continued study integrating cardiovascular principles and techniques for various practical applications. This course includes a laboratory and a 2 day per week clinical component.

Prerequisite: CVT 2210.

Corequisites: CVT 2110, CVT 2120. (Offered Fall) 5 credits

CVT 2200 CLINICAL CARDIOVASCULAR EXPERIENCE III

A comprehensive study of advanced techniques practiced in the field echocardiography and vascular technology. Students will participate in an integrated program of lecture, laboratory, and clinical practice to obtain proficiency. Case presentations and discussions of current trends in clinical practice will be included.

Prerequisites: CVT 2110, CVT 2120, CVT 2150. Corequisite: CVT2570. (Offered Spring) **6 credits**

CVT 2210 CARDIOVASCULAR CLINICAL PRACTICUM I

A clinical experience integrating didactic knowledge with practical cardiovascular principles and techniques. This course includes a 4 day a week clinical component and 4 clinical conferences designed to increase professional growth through the discussion of critical decision-making, case presentation and analysis, and vendor presentations.

Prerequisites: BIO 1210, CVT 2030, CVT 2100, CVT 2130, MAT 1160.

(Offered Summer) 5 credits

CVT 2400 CARDIOVASCULAR CLINICAL PRACTICUM II

A full-time clinical internship in echocardiography and vascular technology. Includes clinical conferences with regard to student clinical progress designed to challenge the student's problem solving, decision-making and critical thinking skills necessary for success on the national credentialing examinations.

Prerequisites: CVT 2200, CVT 2570. (Offered Summer) 6 credits

CVT 2570 CARDIOVASCULAR SCIENTIFIC RESEARCH

Writing-Intensive Course

A study of cardiovascular scientific research tools including utilization of library resources, data collection, statistical interpretation of data and skilled scientific writing.

Prerequisites: CVT 2110, CVT 2150.

Corequisites: CVT 2200. (Offered Spring) 3 credits

CVT 2910 INDEPENDENT STUDY

This course provides for independent study in an area approved by the Program Director. The student works under the guidance of a Cardiovascular Technology faculty member who must consent to sponsor the student prior to final approval by the Program Director.

(Offered upon request and approval) 1-3 credits

CVT 2960 TOPICS IN CARDIOVASCULAR SCIENCES

Open to qualified students who wish to pursue a special area of interest in a research, advanced technology, or clinical specialty upon approval by the Program Director.

(Offered upon request and approval) 1-6 credits

SECTION II STANDARDS OF CLINICAL BEHAVIOR AND PRACTICE

INTRODUCTION

Clinical experience is an opportunity for the Cardiovascular Technology student to practice and attain proficiency in diagnostic imaging and technical skills, as well as other hospital-based procedures. The hospital environment is used to make the transition from theoretical learning and laboratory practice to actual patient care and the development of interdisciplinary collaboration.

Clinical practice will help to develop skills in the following areas:

- Patient communication, safety, and therapeutic relationship
- Health care team communication and collaboration
- Cardiovascular Technology examination protocol (practices and procedures)
- Hospital organization and procedures
- Safe practices

The hospital or clinical setting is a learning environment. Your personal gains depend upon your actions, reactions, ambitions, assertiveness, and willingness to help and learn toward to application of the didactic training you have gained on campus utilizing the laboratory experience, Simulation Laboratory, and competencies you will perform on campus.

Your supervision and evaluation are achieved through the preceptor model (a technologist at the clinical site who will provide ongoing and consistent evaluation during your clinical rotations. The hospital is a learning environment. Your personal gains depend on your desire to have a positive learning experience. You are a representative of the Molloy University Cardiovascular Technology Program while engaged in clinical education sites. Clinical rotations are the beginning of your professional life.

HEALTH REQUIREMENTS

In addition to other clinical clearance requirements, Allied Health Sciences' students must complete a drug test and initial background check through the program's approved vendor, prior to participating in clinical learning experiences. Clearance requirements vary by clinical site and are subject to change at any time. Students are responsible for all costs associated with the drug test and background check, along with all other clinical clearance requirements. Students entering the clinical sequence of an Allied Health Sciences' program curriculum will be informed as to the timeline and deadline for completion of all clinical clearance requirements.

Students must be aware that clinical placement sites reserve the right to deny, in their sole discretion, a student's clinical placement based upon the results of the background check, drug screening, noncompliance with safety or vaccination requirements, or other site-specific requirements. Procedures related to clearance for clinical experiences are documented in each respective Allied Health Sciences' program student handbooks. The Molloy University Barbara H. Hagan School of Nursing and Health Sciences ("The School") is not responsible for the clinical ineligibility of any student for any reason, including but not limited to whether a history of conviction, potential drug use, or to other circumstances which were disclosed to the School of the University prior to the student's matriculation. If a student's clinical placement at a clinical site is denied, the School does not guarantee the availability of an alternative clinical placement. The School or University is under no obligation to affirmatively seek out additional clinical placement sites that may be willing to accept a student who has been denied a clinical placement. If a student cannot be placed in an established clinical site for any reason, including, but not

limited to, a failed background check or drug test, clinical clearance, or other finding, he/she will not be able to complete the Allied Health Sciences' program and will therefore be removed and dismissed from the Allied Health Sciences' program.

STUDENT HEALTH INSURANCE

All Molloy University students are required to either purchase health insurance through the university or provide proof of equivalent insurance. This is a university-based policy for all full-time students.

STUDENT INJURIES OR ILLNESS WHILE ATTENDING CLINICAL

All incidents involving student illness or injury during a clinical rotation are to be reported to the Clinical Coordinator, as soon as possible, via email. The Clinical Coordinator will communicate all incidents to the Program Director.

The student should be seen for emergency care and needle sticks as recommended by the supervising clinical preceptor at the clinical site. This does not include routine care for colds, flu, or other routine medical care. All paperwork required by the clinical site must be completed. Treatment at a clinical site's Emergency Room may incur a financial obligation for the student.

NON-EMPLOYEE POLICY

Students must not complete clinical coursework while in employee status at a clinical affiliate. Students shall not receive any form of remuneration in exchange for work they perform in relation to their clinical training. Students must not be used to substitute for clinical, instructional, or administrative staff.

BASIC LIFE SUPPORT CERTIFICATION

All students are required to have a current Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) Basic Life Support (BLS) for Healthcare Providers certification. One of the following is required:

- American Heart Association BLS Provider course
- American Red Cross Professional Rescuers course
- American Red Cross BLS for Healthcare Providers course

Online courses are not acceptable.

Students will not be permitted to attend clinical rotations without a valid BLS certification. A signed BLS certification card must be submitted via the *CastleBranch Compliance Tracker*.

CARDIOVASCULAR TECHNOLOGY IN A CULTURALLY DIVERSE WORLD

Cardiovascular Technology practitioners need to become informed about, and sensitive to, culturally diverse subjective meanings of health, illness, caring, and healing practices. A transcultural care perspective is now considered essential for healthcare professionals to deliver quality care to all clients. Working with clients (patients) of different cultural beliefs provides the opportunity to enrich healthcare workers' lives through a respectful understanding of the differences of others.

Kittler and Sucher (1990) suggest a four-step process to improve cultural sensitivity:

- 1. Become aware of one's own cultural heritage. Technologists should identify his/her own cultural values and beliefs. For example, does the healthcare worker value stoic behavior in relation to pain? Are the rights of the individual valued over cultural (values, practices, and beliefs) can a person be ready to learn about another's individual perspective.
- 2. Become aware of the client's culture as described by the client. It is important to avoid assuming that all people of the same ethnic background have the same culture. When the technologist has knowledge of the client's culture, mutual respect between client and technologist is more likely to develop.
- 3. Become aware, from the client, of adaptations made to live in the North American culture. During this interview, the technologist should identify the client's preferences in health practices, diet, hygiene, and so on.
- 4. Form a technologist protocol care plan with the client that incorporates his or her culture. In this way, cultural values, practices, and beliefs can be incorporated with care and judgment.

THE CLINICAL PRECEPTOR MODEL

The Clinical Preceptor Model is used for clinical training by healthcare programs across the country. A preceptor is a person, generally a staff technologist or supervisor, who teaches, counsels, inspires, and acts as a role model for the student. This person supports the growth and development of an individual (the novice) for a fixed and limited amount of time. The careful pairing of a novice with an experienced, educated staff technologist in the clinical setting provides an environment of nourishment and growth for the novice and often results in recognition and reward for the preceptor.

We determined that this model has the following characteristics that we want to use:

- 1. The students do their clinical rotations by being paired (one student typically with one staff person) with a staff member (referred to as a clinical preceptor) who has a normal patient load assignment.
- 2. A limited amount of supervision is provided by the university though the use of its classroom and faculty/clinical educators who visit the facility
- 3. At first the student primarily observes the staff member perform patient care procedures, but soon after, gradually begin assisting the staff member with the accomplishment of their patient load. The students are eventually able to take and correctly accomplish the patient care assignment.
- 4. Only one or two students are likely to be scheduled per shift at any one time.
- 5. Students have to come for minimum of 4 and max of 12 hours per shift (typically 8 hours).
- 6. The students are more like apprentices, vs students' formal instruction.

Goals for the Student:

Students are required to complete clinical hours as required by the accrediting agency guidelines and the Molloy University Cardiovascular Technology Program. Make a smooth transition from the student level role to an entry-level competent Cardiovascular Technologist.

Goal for the Clinical Affiliate:

Clinical site staff technologists are required to contribute to the learning process of Cardiovascular Technology students which will ensure the preparation of competent graduate Cardiovascular Technologists. The clinical site provides an opportunity for selected Cardiovascular Technology technologists to gain experience in the role of preceptor. They

assist in the transition of new graduates when they enter the job market.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE MOLLOY UNIVERSITY CARDIOVASCULAR TECHNOLOGY PROGRAM

The Clinical Coordinator organizes and oversees the daily operations of clinical education under the direction of the Program Director. Duties include, but are not limited to:

- coordinating student placements at clinical sites
- evaluating and tabulating students' clinical forms and attendance sheets
- mentoring, counseling, and supervising students
- locating and investigating additional clinical sites
- monitoring and keeping in contact with current clinical sites by visitation, telephone and correspondence regarding updates, student progress and changes in policy

RESPONSIBILITES OF THE MOLLOY UNIVERSITY CARDIOVASCULAR TECHNOLOGY STUDENT

Each facility is governed by a set of policies and procedures; you are to follow the guidelines of the clinical facility. These are always kept current and accessible to students. If any questions arise as to matters related to policy or procedure, please refer to these manuals. The student will:

- A. perform patient care under supervision of a preceptor assuming an increasing level of responsibility daily.
- B. notify clinical affiliate preceptor and Clinical Coordinator if going to be tardy or absent in a timely and appropriate manner.
- C. adhere to the Molloy University CVT student dress guidelines by displaying a professional appearance when in clinical facilities.
- D. review necessary theory and clinical content to maximize safety and performance.
- E. consult with Molloy University Clinical Coordinator at designated intervals and as needed.
- F. participate in on-going communication with preceptor and Molloy University faculty.
- G. participate in the evaluation of the clinical site.
- H. conform to all policies and procedures particular to the clinical facility
- I. every patient has the right to privacy (HIPAA). As students you will have access to personal, patient information. You must respect the patient's right to privacy. You should not discuss any patient's condition with anyone who is not professionally involved with the patient's care.
- J. when determining appropriate behavior, do not always copy fellow practitioners. It is the responsibility of the student to follow acceptable practice at any assigned site.
- K. promoting harmonious working relationships with the clinical site personnel through a professional and dignified posture
- L. using all equipment and materials responsibly, correctly, and safely
- M. observing and assisting the clinical staff
- N. attending and participating in all scheduled clinical activities
- O. consulting with Clinical Affiliate Supervisors and/or program faculty for assistance with problems
- P. participating in the development of an individualized clinical education plan
- Q. maintaining an accurate record of clinical examinations/competencies
- R. recording the number and types of evaluations required during each academic semester
- S. striving to broaden his/her knowledge and background on clinical subject matters by reading the professional literature available and attending conferences and seminars
- T. incurring all travel costs and expenses relative to clinical attendance
- U. adhering to established policies and procedures to insure a harmonious learning environment for all students

CARDIOVASCULAR TECHNOLOGY PROGRAM CLINICAL GUIDELINES

CLINICAL ATTENDANCE POLICIES

- A. Students will attend clinics every scheduled day.
- B. Clinical hours will vary according to hospital placement.
- C. Students who are not at clinical during the scheduled day and time will be assessed an absence period.
- D. All absences must be made up. All make-up time must be completed prior to the last week of the clinical rotation in order to complete the course.
- E. Make-up time is not scheduled to interfere with scheduled classes or clinical days. The scheduling of make-up time is done by the Clinical Coordinator, in conjunction with the hospital affiliate.
- F. Absence periods may be excused or unexcused at the discretion of the Clinical Coordinator.
- G. Excused absences generally include illness with documentation or family crisis. Make-up time will be required.
- H. Unexcused absence periods are assessed for:
 - Two late arrivals
 - Failure to notify the Clinical Coordinator of late arrival or absence PRIOR to the start of the clinical shift.
 - Failure to notify the clinical site of late arrival or absence PRIOR to the start of clinical shift.
 - Leaving clinic before designated time.
- I. Make-up time will be required for all absences.
- J. The student will lose one grade level for ONE unexcused absence. TWO unexcused absences will result in a failing grade.

GENERAL STATEMENT ON CONDUCT

All students enrolled at Molloy University are expected to follow a code of behavior consistent with the high standards of the health professions and to uphold the reputation of the University. In addition, students will comply with the rules and regulations duly established within the School. Deviation shall constitute misconduct. This includes, but is not limited to:

- dishonesty, such as cheating, plagiarism or knowingly furnishing false information to the University
- forgery, alteration, or misuse of university documents, records, time sheets or identification
- violation of public law
- disruption of class or clinical session such as by use of abusive or obscene language
- insubordination (defined as "unwilling to submit to authority; disobedient; rebellious")
- inappropriate behavior at the clinic affiliate or on university premises
- being intoxicated or under the influence of illegal drugs while on clinical assignment or on university premises
- vandalism or stealing
- sleeping during a clinical assignment
- leaving a clinical assignment or room/area assignment without the supervisor's permission
- failure to notify Clinical Education Affiliate and the Clinical Coordinator of absence or lateness
- violation of any duly established rule or regulation

CLINICAL DRESS CODE

The goal of DRESS CODE is to direct the Cardiovascular Technology Program student towards a professional appearance and appropriate wardrobe in the clinical setting.

Any alterations in APPEARANCE from this dress code may result in the student being sent home by department administrator, clinical supervisor and/or Clinical Coordinator.

- A. Students are required to wear the designated wine-colored scrubs during clinical assignments. Clinical clothing must be clean and reflect a professional appearance during clinical rotations.
- B. Clinical I.D. badges must be worn at all times to properly identify you as a Molloy University Cardiovascular Technology student.
- C. Shoes may be plain white athletic shoes and or a white dress shoe of a professional appearance
- D. No sandals, clogs or high tops, or open toed shoes permitted.
- E. Confine any Jewelry to simple, non-swinging types that display a professional appearance.
- F. Hair and beards must be clean and neatly trimmed.
- G. Fingernails should be kept neatly trimmed and short in length.
- H. No perfume or cologne may be worn.
- I. No gum-chewing is permitted.
- J. The student must maintain a clean, neat, professional appearance at all times. The instructor may send a student home who is not properly attired. This will result in an unexcused absence.

NON-COMPLIANCE WITH DRESS CODE

Any student found inappropriately attired will be dismissed from the clinical site immediately and appropriate disciplinary action will be determined by the Clinical Coordinator. Clinical time missed due to dress code violation must be made up by the student. Make-up time will be determined by the Clinical Coordinator in coordination with the Clinical Affiliate Supervisor.

ADDITIONAL STUDENT RESPONSIBILITIES

STUDENT RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. Students are required to complete all requirements via the *CastleBranch Compliance Tracker* prior to attending clinical rotations.
- B. Students should become familiar with the clinical site's policy and procedure manual including emergency disaster plans.
- C. Students should not count on a morning break for breakfast. Student lunch will be scheduled by the clinical site and often around patient care examinations.
- D. Students are responsible for proper completion of all assigned procedures. Any conflicts should be discussed with the clinical preceptor or supervisor prior to starting examinations.
- E. Students should not be idle. Time between examinations should be utilized to assist with the needs of the clinical site, to work on case reports, to study, and to complete requisite clinical packet documentation.
- F. Students should always conduct themselves in an ethical and professional manner. Students are subject to dismissal for poor or apathetic performance, unsafe conduct, or any unprofessional behavior.
- G. Cellular telephone use is not permitted during clinical rotations, except during designated lunch time and in the case of emergency.

CLINICAL ROTATIONS - Documentation and Evaluation

All required clinical forms and evaluation instruments will be provided to the student, and reviewed, by the Clinical Coordinator. These forms include attendance records, self-evaluations, behavioral ratings, clinical log forms, clinical examination totals, and a clinical site evaluation.

Students must maintain a clinical preceptor daily log. The clinical log will be completed daily, verifying the date and contact hours covered each day. The log must be initialed daily by the participating student's clinical preceptor for the day. At designated intervals, students must submit all completed, signed clinical documentation to the Clinical Coordinator. It is the responsibility of the student to keep the clinical documentation updated and to obtain required signatures. Failure to do so may result in a lowering of the final course grade.

All students are responsible for conducting themselves in a professional manner during any educational experience at a clinical affiliate and for demonstrating respect towards its personnel, patients, and families. Should a problem arise (personally, professionally, or medically), the student should immediately contact the clinical instructor and Clinical Coordinator. It is our hope to make your clinical rotation as rewarding as possible.

LABORATORY ACCESS

Access to the Cardiovascular Technology Laboratory, for the practice required for the attainment of psychomotor skills and for remediation, is available during scheduled open lab hours. The laboratory must be kept clean. FOOD AND DRINKS are not permitted in the lab. No one is permitted in the CVT laboratory, except CVT students who are enrolled in the CVT Program, and in good standing. Any student bringing anyone into the laboratory, other than CVT students, may be subject to immediate dismissal.

PROFESSIONAL CONFIDENTIALITY - HIPAA

The importance of confidentiality cannot be overemphasized. It is mandatory that you adhere to all HIPAA (Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act) standards. Discussion of patients must be limited to professionals involved in the patient's care and Cardiovascular Technology classes. At no time are patients to be discussed at breaks, on elevators, in the shuttle bus, or in other inappropriate settings. Only patient's room numbers may be used on written work. Patient charts are confidential records and may not be photocopied.

SOCIAL MEDIA

Absolutely no patient information can be used on social media sites such as YouTube, Facebook, Instagram, etc. This information is available to anyone with internet access, including Molloy University faculty and staff, as well as potential employers.

Students are urged to take this into consideration when posting on these or other internet networks. The best postings adhere to appropriate internet etiquette and portray a professional network identity. The Cardiovascular Technology Program will take swift action to protect patient confidentiality with resultant dismissal of the student from the program if the student is found in violation of this mandate.

SMOKING POLICY

Smoking is prohibited on University property, both indoors and outdoors, as well as in University owned or leased vehicles. Individuals are prohibited from smoking in vehicles located on University property. The policy prohibits all forms of tobacco and any nicotine delivery device that has not been approved by the FDA for cessation. To be clear, this policy prohibits the use of traditional tobacco products (e.g. cigarettes, cigars) and electronic smoking devices, such as e-

cigarettes. Enforcement of this policy will depend on the cooperation of all members of the University community, both to comply, personally, and to encourage others' compliance. The Tobacco-Free Policy will be widely and regularly disseminated through all available channels, including the University website, public announcements, signage, and employee and student publications.

TRANSPORTATION TO CLINICAL AFFILIATES

Students are responsible for their own transportation to and from agencies utilized for clinical education. It is necessary for all students to have reliable transportation.

SDMS STATEMENT OF ETHICS AND PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT *

Code of Ethics for the Profession of Diagnostic Medical Sonography/Cardiovascular Technologist

Approved by SDMS Board of Directors, December 6, 2006

PREAMBLE

The goal of this code of ethics is to promote excellence in patient care by fostering responsibility and accountability among diagnostic medical sonographers. In so doing, the integrity of the profession of diagnostic medical sonography will be maintained.

OBJECTIVES

- 1. To create and encourage an environment where professional and ethical issues are discussed and addressed.
- 2. To help the individual diagnostic medical sonographer identify ethical issues.
- 3. To provide guidelines for individual diagnostic medical sonographers regarding ethical behavior.

*See "Appendix C" for the full statement

Cardiovascular Technology Program Clinical Affiliate List

As a Molloy University Cardiovascular Technology student, you will have first-hand experience with the latest imaging technologies and participate in clinical rotations at various affiliate hospitals, clinics and private offices located primarily within, but not limited to, northern NJ and NY. The Program has established agreements with a variety of clinical education centers to maximize student exposure to multiple settings and to provide experience in applying cardiovascular techniques. Students are responsible for providing their own transportation to clinical facilities. In most situations, personal transportation will be necessary.

Brookhaven Memorial Hospital Medical Center

101 Hospital Road East Patchogue, NY 11772

Cardiology and Internal Medicine of Long Island

510 Hicksville Road Massapequa, NY 11758

Doctors Immediate Care

4900 Hempstead Turnpike Farmingdale, NY 11735

Franklin Hospital Medical Center

900 Franklin Avenue Valley Stream, NY 11580

Frisbee Memorial Hospital

11 Whitehall Road Rochester, NH 03867

Good Samaritan Hospital Medical Center

1000 Montauk Highway West Islip, NY 11795

Gramercy Cardiac Diagnostic Services

Practice Builders Medical Management 131 West 35th Street, Suite 700 New York, NY 10001

Huntington Hospital

270 Park Avenue Huntington, NY 11743

Laurelton Heart Specialists

234-36 Merrick Boulevard Rosedale, NY 11422

Long Beach Medical Center

455 East Bay Drive Long Beach, NY 11561

Long Island Cardiac Care -Ronnie Hershman, MD

1 Hollow Lane, Suite 103 Lake Success, NY 11042

Long Island Jewish Medical Center

270-05 76th Avenue New Hyde Park, NY 11040

Long Island Jewish Medical Center-Pediatric Cardiology

269-01 76th Avenue New Hyde Park, NY 11042

Maimonides Medical Center

4802 Tenth Avenue Brooklyn, NY 11219

Manhattan Cardiology

211 East 51st Street New York, NY 10022

Mercy Medical Center

1000 North Village Avenue Rockville Centre, NY 11570

Montefiore Medical Center

111 East 210th Street Bronx, NY 10467

Mount Sinai Hospital

1190 5th Avenue New York, NY 10029

New York Hospital Queens

56-45 Main Street Flushing, NY 11355

North Nassau Cardiology Associates

70 Glen Street, Suite 200 Glen Cove, NY 11577

North Shore University Hospital

300 Community Drive Manhasset, NY 11030

North Shore Vein Center

1 Hollow Lane, Suite 210 Lake Success, NY 11042

NY Preventative Cardiology Institute - Guy Mintz, MD

287 Northern Boulevard Suite 201 Great Neck, NY 11021

Plainview Hospital

888 Old Country Road Plainview, NY 11803

Rockville Centre Cardiovascular Services – Thierry Duchatellier, MD

2000 N. Village Avenue, Suite 108 Rockville Centre, NY 11570

South Bay Cardiovascular Associates

540 Union Boulevard West Islip, NY 11795

South Shore Heart Associates

242 Merrick Road, Suite 402 Rockville Centre, NY 11570

Southside Hospital

301 East Main Street Bay Shore, NY 11706

St. Francis Hospital

100 Port Washington Boulevard Roslyn, NY 11576

Winthrop University Hospital

Winthrop Pavilion, 2nd Floor 259 First Street Mineola, NY 11501

Specific contact information will be provided to students during pre-clinical orientation at each rotation. This listing is for informational purposes and is subject to change.

CLINICAL EDUCATION ELIGIBILITY

To be assigned to a Clinical Affiliate Site, the student must meet the following requirements:

- maintain good academic standing in the Department of Allied Health Sciences (refer to the "Academic Policies" section of this Student Handbook)
- provide and maintain proof of certification in adult cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR)
- provide a current health certificate from a certified physician indicating that the student is in good health. The document should include a description of any physical disability that may require monitoring during the student's course of study. If a disability interrupts the student's course of study, it should be discussed with the Clinical Coordinator
- satisfy all immunization requirements and obtain clearance from Health Services prior to
 commencing or resuming participation in didactic, laboratory and clinical courses.
 Failure to meet these health requirements may result in the delay of attending classes,
 laboratory sessions and clinical practica (with associated make-up time), the failure of
 these courses and dismissal from the Program

POLICIES GOVERNING CLINICAL EDUCATION SCHEDULING

The purpose of clinical education is to correlate didactic knowledge with practical skills covered in laboratory sessions. Although competency-based, clinical education under the supervision of a Registered Cardiovascular Technologist will be required for all students.

The total number of students assigned to any clinical site shall be determined by the Program in compliance with the recommendation from the Joint Review Committee on Education in Cardiovascular Technology (JRCCVT) and in coordination with individual Clinical Affiliate Supervisors.

The student is subject to all rules and regulations of the clinical site. The Clinical Affiliate Supervisor reserves the right to suspend or terminate a student from participation in clinical education within their facility who does not maintain appropriate behavior or adhere to the responsibilities of the student as outlined. (Refer to "Responsibilities of the Student" section of this Student Handbook).

If a student is suspended or dismissed from a clinical site, the student will be transferred to another site only if this action is deemed appropriate by the Clinical Coordinator. The procedure for dismissal from the program may be initiated by the Clinical Coordinator in coordination with the Program Director. The Committee on Academic and Professional Standing makes the recommendation to the Dean for final action regarding student dismissals.

CLINICAL SITE ASSIGNMENT

The Clinical Coordinator determines student schedules and assignments at Clinical Affiliate Sites. Assignments are intended to provide the student with a comprehensive clinical education as deemed appropriate by the faculty and serve to correlate didactic knowledge with practical laboratory skills.

Students' clinical assignments will be based on:

- students' experience and competency level
- students' clinical education needs, directed toward reaching entry-level cardiovascular technologist competency status
- site availability

Any student requesting changes in the clinical schedule must submit a written request along with justification for the change request to the Clinical Coordinator. A decision will be made based on the criteria outlined above. Clinical schedule changes should not cause a disruption to the clinical sites under any circumstance.

Commuting time and costs are not primary determining factors for clinical placements and are borne solely by the student.

CLEARANCE FOR CLINICAL PLACEMENTS

In addition to other clinical clearance requirements, Allied Health Sciences' students must complete a drug test and initial background check through the program's approved vendor, prior to participating in clinical learning experiences. Clearance requirements vary by clinical site and are subject to change at any time. Students are responsible for all costs associated with the drug test and background check, along with all other clinical clearance requirements. Students entering the clinical sequence of an Allied Health Sciences' program curriculum will be informed as to the timeline and deadline for completion of all clinical clearance requirements.

Students must be aware that clinical placement sites reserve the right to deny, in their sole discretion, a student's clinical placement based upon the results of the background check, drug screening, noncompliance with safety or vaccination requirements, or other site-specific requirements. Procedures related to clearance for clinical experiences are documented in each respective Allied Health Sciences' program student handbooks. The Molloy University Barbara H. Hagan School of Nursing and Health Sciences ("The School") is not responsible for the clinical ineligibility of any student for any reason, including but not limited to whether a history of conviction, potential drug use, or to other circumstances which were disclosed to the School of the University prior to the student's matriculation. If a student's clinical placement at a clinical site is denied, the School does not guarantee the availability of an alternative clinical placement. The School or University is under no obligation to affirmatively seek out additional clinical placement sites that may be willing to accept a student who has been denied a clinical placement. If a student cannot be placed in an established clinical site for any reason, including, but not limited to, a failed background check or drug test, clinical clearance, or other finding, he/she will not be able to complete the Allied Health Sciences' program and will therefore be removed and dismissed from the Allied Health Sciences' program.

STATEMENT TO CLINICAL AFFILIATES

The following information is available to clinical affiliates, upon request, for Cardiovascular Technology students when they initially arrive at new clinical rotations. Students are to provide this documentation to the clinical affiliate upon request.

______, is a student currently enrolled in the Cardiovascular Technology program at Molloy University and has fulfilled the following requirements:

Infection Control Training

- Hospital Fire and Safety training
- Confidentiality Policy and HIPAA Training
- Hepatitis B Vaccine Information
- Health Certificates (on file in the Allied Health Sciences Department)
- Malpractice Insurance Certificate (available upon request)
- OSHA training

HOSPITAL JOB ACTIONS OR STRIKES

Whenever a strike or job action occurs at an assigned clinical site, the student will leave the assignment immediately and report to the Clinical Coordinator for further instruction.

At no time should a student attempt to cross a picket line to enter a Clinical Site.

JURY DUTY

Being selected for jury duty is a civic responsibility in which Molloy University encourages students to participate. However, any clinical time missed while performing jury duty will need to be made up by the end of the semester. Proper documentation of jury duty must be provided to the Clinical Coordinator.

Please be advised that Molloy University cannot intervene on the student's behalf regarding a summons for jury duty.

INCIDENT REPORTS AT A CLINICAL AFFILIATE SITE

When a student is injured or involved in an incident during a clinical rotation, the student is required to:

- 1. report immediately to his/her Clinical Affiliate Supervisor and follow departmental protocol.
- 2. present a note to the Clinical Coordinator from the Emergency Room physician, Health Services physician or a family physician stating when the student may resume education.

If a patient is injured while in a student's care, the student should make sure that the patient is safe and then report the incident to the Clinical Affiliate Supervisor to review departmental protocol. Prior to leaving the site, the student must fill out an incident report and provide a copy to the Clinical Coordinator for documentation.

IMMUNIZATIONS/INFECTIOUS DISEASES

Should a student be diagnosed as having an infectious disease, the student must report such a diagnosis to the Clinical Coordinator and the Clinical Affiliate Supervisor. If the student is on clinical assignment, the Clinical Affiliate Supervisor will inform the student of the hospital's infection control procedure. After the illness, the student must present a physician's note to the Clinical Coordinator stating when the student may resume clinical education.

STATEMENT ON CARE FOR PATIENTS WITH SUSPECTED INFECTIOUS OR COMMUNICABLE DISEASE

Health care workers, including cardiovascular technology students, care for patients that may have communicable diseases. Students prepare by wearing appropriate Personal Protective Equipment (PPE). Nurses and allied health professionals have the ethical obligation to care for

patients and cardiovascular technology students have that same obligation. Additionally, allied health professionals and cardiovascular technology students will not discriminate against any individual based on the perception that he or she has, or is suspected of having, an infectious or communicable disease.

When students are assigned to a hospital unit that includes segregated infectious patients, the students are expected to remain on the unit and complete their clinical assignments.

- Faculty and/or an associate dean/department chairperson/program director will speak with students who are concerned that they cannot remain in the clinical environment.
- Students unwilling to remain, or who insist on leaving the site will receive a withdrawal from the course.
- WA will be entered as long as student is currently passing the didactic portion of the course.
- The course must be repeated in a subsequent semester, as available.
- Withdrawal from the semester will be treated as any other course withdrawal.
- When the course is repeated, the student must continue for the full semester and earn a grade.

PROCEDURE FOR FILING GRIEVANCE BY FACULTY

- A. A grievance shall first be addressed informally by the faculty member/grievant, the Faculty President and the Vice-President for Academic Affairs. If they are unable to resolve the matter, the formal grievance process shall be initiated.
- B. The faculty member with a perceived cause for grievance must submit a written statement of intent to grieve to the Faculty President within thirty (30) days following the date she/he first knew, or reasonably should have known, as determined by the Faculty President in consultation with the Faculty Council, of the matter being grieved. The written grievance statement must include the following:
 - 1. The grievant's name, including academic title and department.
 - 2. A brief description of the grieved act and the date on which it occurred.
 - 3. The name and title of the person or action being grieved, if known. The term "person" shall not include the "Board of Trustees" or the "administration" of the University.
 - 4. A statement indicating the remedy sought by the grievant.
 - 5. The signature of the grievant.

See the Molloy University Faculty Handbook for complete feature

APPENDIX A PATIENTS' BILL OF RIGHTS

We consider you a partner in your hospital care. When you are well informed, participate in treatment decisions and communicate openly with your doctor and other health professionals, you help make your care as effective as possible. This hospital encourages respect for the personal preferences and values of each individual.

While you are a patient in the hospital, your rights include the following:

- You have the right to considerate and respectful care.
- You have the right to be well-informed about your illness, possible treatments and likely outcome and to discuss this information with your doctor. You have the right to know the names and roles of people treating you.
- You have the right to consent to or refuse a treatment, as permitted by law, throughout your hospital stay. If you refuse a recommended treatment, you will receive other needed and available care.
- You have the right to have an advance directive, such as a living will or health care proxy. These documents express your choices about your future care or name someone to decide if you cannot speak for yourself. If you have a written advance directive, you should provide a copy for your family and your doctor.
- You have the right to privacy. The hospital, your doctor, and others caring for you will protect your privacy as much as possible.
- You have the right to expect that treatment records are confidential unless you have given
 permission to release information or reporting is required or permitted by law. When the
 hospital releases records to others, such as insurers, it emphasizes that the records are
 confidential.
- You have the right to review your medical records and to have the information explained except when restricted by law.
- You have the right to expect that the hospital will give you necessary health services to the best of its ability. Treatment, referral, or transfer may be recommended. If transfer is recommended or requested, you will be informed of risks, benefits, and alternatives. You will not be transferred until the other institution agrees to accept you.
- You have the right to know if the hospital has relationships with outside parties that may influence your treatment and care. These relationships may be with educational institutions, other health care providers or insurers.
- You have the right to consent or decline to take part in research affecting your care. If you choose not to take part, you will receive the most effective care the hospital provides.
- You have the right to be told of realistic care alternatives when hospital care is no longer appropriate.
- You have the right to know about hospital rules that affect you, your treatment, charges, and payment methods. You have the right to know about hospital resources, such as patient representatives or ethic committees that can help you resolve problems and questions about your hospital stay and care.

- You have responsibilities as a patient. You are responsible for providing information about your health, including past illnesses, hospital stays and use of medicine. You are responsible for asking questions when you do not understand information or instructions. If you believe you can't follow through with your treatment, you are responsible for telling your doctor.
- This hospital works to provide care efficiently and fairly to all patients and the community. You and your visitors are responsible for being considerate of the needs of other patients, staff, and the hospital. You are responsible for providing information for insurance and for working with the hospital to arrange payment, when needed.
- Your health depends not just on your hospital care but, in the long term, on the decisions you make in your daily life. You are responsible for recognizing the effect of lifestyle on your personal health.
- Hospitals serve many purposes. They work to improve peoples' health; treat people with
 injury and disease; educate doctors, health professionals, patients, and community members
 and improve understanding of health and disease. In carrying out these activities, this
 institution works to respect your values and dignity.

APPENDIX B

Scope of Practice and Clinical Standards
for the Diagnostic Medical Sonographer
- Society of Diagnostic Medical Sonography (SDMS)

Link:

https://www.sdms.org/news/2024/03/15/now-available-revised-scope-of-practice-and-clinical-standards-for-the-diagnostic-medical-sonographer

APPENDIX C SDMS STATEMENT OF ETHICS AND PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT

Code of Ethics for the Profession of Diagnostic Medical Sonography/Cardiovascular Technologist

Approved by SDMS Board of Directors, December 6, 2006

PREAMBLE

The goal of this code of ethics is to promote excellence in patient care by fostering responsibility and accountability among diagnostic medical sonographers. In so doing, the integrity of the profession of diagnostic medical sonography will be maintained.

OBJECTIVES

- 1. To create and encourage an environment where professional and ethical issues are discussed and addressed.
- 2. To help the individual diagnostic medical sonographer identify ethical issues.
- 3. To provide guidelines for individual diagnostic medical sonographers regarding ethical behavior.

PRINCIPLES

Principle I: In order to promote patient well-being, the diagnostic medical sonographer shall:

- A. Provide information to the patient about the purpose of the sonography procedure and respond to the patient's questions and concerns.
- B. Respect the patient's autonomy and the right to refuse the procedure.
- C. Recognize the patient's individuality and provide care in a non-judgmental and non-discriminatory manner.
- D. Promote the privacy, dignity and comfort of the patient by thoroughly explaining the examination, patient positioning and implementing proper draping techniques.
- E. Maintain confidentiality of acquired patient information, and follow national patient privacy regulations as required by the "Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA)."
- F. Promote patient safety during the provision of sonography procedures and while the patient is in the care of the diagnostic medical sonographer.

Principle II: To promote the highest level of competent practice, diagnostic medical sonographers shall:

- A. Obtain appropriate diagnostic medical sonography education and clinical skills to ensure competence.
- B. Achieve and maintain specialty specific sonography credentials. Sonography credentials must be awarded by a national sonography credentialing body that is accredited by a national organization which accredits credentialing bodies, i.e., the National Commission for Certifying Agencies (NCCA); http://www.noca.org/ncca/ncca.htm or the International Organization for Standardization (ISO); http://www.iso.org/iso/en/ISOOnline.frontpage.
- C. Uphold professional standards by adhering to defined technical protocols and diagnostic criteria established by peer review.
- D. Acknowledge personal and legal limits, practice within the defined scope of practice, and assume responsibility for his/her actions.
- E. Maintain continued competence through lifelong learning, which includes continuing education, acquisition of specialty specific credentials and recredentialing.
- F. Perform medically indicated ultrasound studies, ordered by a licensed physician or their designated health care provider.
- G. Protect patients and/or study subjects by adhering to oversight and approval of investigational procedures, including documented informed consent.
- H. Refrain from the use of any substances that may alter judgment or skill and thereby compromise patient care.
- I. Be accountable and participate in regular assessment and review of equipment, procedures, protocols, and results. This can be accomplished through facility accreditation.

Principle III: To promote professional integrity and public trust, the diagnostic medical sonographer shall:

- A. Be truthful and promote appropriate communications with patients and colleagues.
- B. Respect the rights of patients, colleagues and yourself.
- C. Avoid conflicts of interest and situations that exploit others or misrepresent information.
- D. Accurately represent his/her experience, education and credentialing.
- E. Promote equitable access to care.
- F. Collaborate with professional colleagues to create an environment that promotes communication and respect.
- G. Communicate and collaborate with others to promote ethical practice.
- H. Engage in ethical billing practices.
- I. Engage only in legal arrangements in the medical industry.
- J. Report deviations from the Code of Ethics to institutional leadership for internal sanctions, local intervention and/or criminal prosecution. The Code of Ethics can serve as a valuable tool to develop local policies and procedures.

APPENDIX D

TECHNICAL STANDARDS FOR THE DIAGNOSTIC MEDICAL SONOGRAPHER

A Diagnostic Medical Sonographer is typically employed in a hospital, clinic, or mobile service to provide diagnostic procedures and direct patient care. Clinical and laboratory assignments for students enrolled in diagnostic medical sonography programs require certain physical demands that are the technical standards of admission. These standards are based upon the minimum tasks performed by graduates of the program as recommended by the Society of Diagnostic Medical Sonography and the American Society of Radiologic Technologists. Listed below are the technical standards which all applicants must meet in order to participate and complete the Cardiovascular Technology Program.

- 1. Sufficient visual acuity to read sonography prescriptions & patient charts, observe conditions of the patient & evaluate sonographic images.
- 2. Sufficient auditory perception to receive verbal communication from patients and members of the healthcare team to obtain and record an accurate patient history and to assess the health needs of people using monitoring devices such as intercom systems, cardiac monitors, respiratory monitors, fire alarms, etc.
- 3. Sufficient gross and fine motor coordination to respond promptly and to implement skills related to the performance of sonographic imaging examinations and/or cardiovascular procedures, such as positioning and transporting patients and obtaining diagnostic images. Sonographers must be able to manipulate sonographic equipment to achieve diagnostic images.
- 4. Sufficient communication skills (verbal, reading, writing) to interact with individuals and to communicate their needs promptly and effectively, as may be necessary in the patient's/client's interest, collaborate with physicians and other members of the health care team, and provide an oral or written summary of the technical findings to the physician for medical diagnosis.
- 5. Sufficient intellectual and emotional function to plan and implement quality patient care, analyze technical information, and use independent judgment in recognizing the need to extend the scope of the procedure according to the diagnostic findings.

Examples of specific technical standards the diagnostic medical sonography student must be able to meet are:

- Lift, transfer and/or assist patients from wheelchair/stretcher to examination table
- Lift, move, reach, push or pull equipment
- Manual dexterity and ability to bend/stretch
- Have full use of both hands, wrists, and shoulders
- Work standing on their feet 80% of the time
- Adequately view sonograms, including color distinctions and shades of gray
- Distinguish audible sounds
- Organize and accurately perform the individual steps in a sonographic procedure in the proper sequence
- Demonstrate effective interpersonal relation skills, including patient instruction
- Interact compassionately and effectively with the sick or injured
- Read and extract information from the medical chart or patient requisitions
- Explain the clinical study verbally and/or in writing



APPENDIX E

POLICY ON CLINICAL EDUCATION ASSIGNMENTS

The following sites are approved for the clinical rotation of students enrolled in the Cardiovascular Technology Program at Molloy University:

- 1. Albert Einstein Hospital
- 2. Brookhaven Memorial Hospital Medical Center
- 3. Doctors Immediate Care
- 4. Franklin Hospital Medical Center
- 5. Frisbee Memorial Hospital
- 6. Good Samaritan Hospital Medical Center
- 7. Gramercy Cardiac Diagnostic Services
- 8. Huntington Hospital
- 9. Laurelton Heart Specialists
- 10. Long Island Cardiac Care
- 11. Long Island Jewish Medical Center
- 12. Long Island Jewish Medical Center-Pediatric Cardiology
- 13. Maimonides Medical Center
- 14. Manhattan Cardiology
- 15. Mercy Medical Center
- 16. Montefiore Medical Center
- 17. Mount Sinai Hospital Vascular Laboratory
- 18. New York Hospital Queens
- 19. North Shore University Hospital
- 20. NY Preventative Cardiology Institute Guy Mintz, MD
- 21. South Bay Cardiovascular Associates
- 22. Southside Hospital
- 23. St. Francis Hospital
- 24. Winthrop University Hospital

The Cardiovascular Technology Program continually strives to provide quality clinical affiliate sites for students. Because of this, clinical sites may be added or removed.

I understand that I will be assigned to clinical affiliate sites in contractual agreement with the Cardiovascular Technology Program and that I am solely responsible for all travel, expenses, and any additional health screenings/background checks as required by specific clinical sites.

Name (print):			
Signature:			
Date:			



APPENDIX F

POLICY REGARDING ADVANCED PLACEMENT, TRANSFER OF CREDIT, AND CREDIT FOR EXPERIENTIAL LEARNING

The Molloy University Cardiovascular Technology Program does NOT:

- offer Advanced Placement options
- accept transfer of credit into the program for CVT courses specific to the Major
- provide credit for experiential learning

The Molloy University Cardiovascular Technology Program does:

- accept transfer of credit into the program for general education and related courses

Name (print):		
Signature:		
Date:		



APPENDIX G

POLICY ON SERVICE WORK FOR STUDENTS

The Molloy University Cardiovascular Technology Program prohibits payment to students by clinical affiliate sites relative to required clinical rotation assignments. Employment by students enrolled in the Program may NOT interfere with the students' successful completion of established requirements.

Name (print):		
Signature:		
-		
Date:		
•		



APPENDIX H

PERMISSION TO RELEASE INFORMATION

I agree that the Cardiovascular Technology Program may provide the following information, in addition to the University designated "public information," to prospective employers:

- University/Program activities
- honors and awards
- general academic and clinical assessment
- recommendation for employment

Name (print):	 	 	
Signature:			
Signature.			
Date:			



APPENDIX I

DIAGNOSTIC MEDICAL SONOGRAPHY SCANNING POLICY

The Cardiovascular Technology Program has adopted the following Diagnostic Medical *Sonography Scanning Policy* for all students, faculty, and staff relative to their participation in imaging procedures as part of the education offered by the Program.

A chaperone will be provided, when necessary or requested, for hands-on scanning as part of the educational program. In instances when students arrange to use Program facilities for their own benefit of scanning practice, reasonable care and precaution should be taken for privacy and safety.

Students may volunteer as ultrasound models for in-class demonstrations and/or laboratory scanning sessions in preparation for clinical experience. Student modeling for ultrasound scanning is strictly voluntary. Students have the right to decline from participation as models at any time.

(See Attachment – AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ULTRASOUND IN MEDICINE STATEMENT ON CLINICAL SAFETY)



AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ULTRASOUND IN MEDICINE STATEMENTS ON SAFETY

The American Institute of Ultrasound in Medicine (AIUM) releases the following policies concerning the use of ultrasound. If further information is desired, please contact the AIUM at www.aium.org

Prudent Use and Clinical Safety

Approved March 19, 2007

Diagnostic ultrasound has been in use since the late 1950s. Given its known benefits and recognized efficacy for medical diagnosis, including use during human pregnancy, the American Institute of Ultrasound in Medicine herein addresses the clinical safety of such use:

No independently confirmed adverse effects caused by exposure from present diagnostic ultrasound instruments have been reported in human patients in the absence of contrast agents. Biological effects (such as localized pulmonary bleeding) have been reported in mammalian systems at diagnostically relevant exposures but the clinical significance of such effects is not yet known. Ultrasound should be used by qualified health professionals to provide medical benefit to the patient.

Safety in Training and Research

Approved March 19, 2007

Diagnostic ultrasound has been in use since the late 1950s. There are no confirmed adverse biological effects on patients resulting from this usage. Although no hazard has been identified that would preclude the prudent and conservative use of diagnostic ultrasound in education and research, experience from normal diagnostic practice may or may not be relevant to extended exposure times and altered exposure conditions. It is therefore considered appropriate to make the following recommendation: When examinations are carried out for purposes of training or research, the subject should be informed of the anticipated exposure conditions and how these compare with normal diagnostic practice.



DIAGNOSTIC MEDICAL SONOGRAPHY SCANNING: INFORMED CONSENT FORM FOR STUDENTS

I agree to allow myself to be scanned as a model for the Molloy University Cardiovascular Technology Program. The purpose of scanning sessions is to provide students with an opportunity to obtain practical experience. I understand that the scanning I will experience is not an official diagnostic procedure. If any abnormalities are detected during these scanning sessions, I will be advised to see a physician if I wish to obtain formal diagnostic studies or counseling. I understand my participation as a model is not a requirement, and I will not be penalized if I choose not to participate.

RISKS – Although studies have been conducted to assess health risks associated with ultrasound, there are no confirmed biological effects on patients or instrument operators. Clinical experience to date shows that ultrasound is a safe, useful means of conducting diagnostic examinations and there is no compelling reason to believe that adverse delayed effects will be apparent in the future.

I have read and had an opportunity to receive clarification on any questions I had about the content of the attached *AIUM Statement on Clinical Safety*.

I hereby waive and release Molloy University, its officers, agents, employees, and students from any claim for damages alleged to result from injuries arising from or related to my participation as a model for the Molloy University Cardiovascular Technology Program.

Name (print):			
_ ,			
Signature:			
Date:			



APPENDIX J

POLICY ON LABORATORY ACCESS

Due to issues of liability, **ONLY** Cardiovascular Technology (CVT) students, who are officially registered and in good standing within the Cardiovascular Technology Program, are permitted access to the Allied Health Sciences (AHS) Laboratory. Students are **NOT** permitted to bring any individual into the AHS Laboratory who is not a currently registered Molloy University CVT student. Any CVT student who brings an outside individual into the AHS laboratory may be subject to immediate program dismissal.

Name (print):				
Signature:				
Date:				



APPENDIX K

CONFIDENTIALITY POLICY

As a student enrolled in the Molloy University Cardiovascular Technology Program, I agree to:

- always remember that the information within patient medical records is to be kept in the strictest confidence. Release of confidential information will result in failure of the directed clinical course.
- NOT discuss information from patient medical records or any information acquired about a patient, except as it is necessary in the working situation in a professional manner.
- NOT seek to obtain the medical records of friends, relatives, acquaintances, or information therefrom for any reason outside of requisite and approved professional medical care.
- NOT seek to obtain his/her own medical record information therefrom, except along established and appropriate channels which are outlined in the facility's policies.
- NOT photocopy any part of patient medical records without proper consent.
- NOT discuss hospital business, personnel, or members of the medical staff, except as is necessary in the working situation in a professional manner.

Name (print):			
Signature:			
Date:			



APPENDIX L

DOCUMENTATION OF CLINICAL EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS FOR STUDENTS

Cardiovascular Technology students are required to successfully complete the following clinical education requirements prior to attending clinical rotations:

- Infection Control and Blood Borne Pathogens Training
- Hospital Fire and Safety Training
- Confidentiality Policy and HIPAA Training
- Hepatitis B Vaccine Immunization
- Student Health Certificate (on file in the Department of Allied Health Sciences)
- Student Malpractice Insurance (Molloy University insurance certificate available upon request)



APPENDIX M

CARDIOVASCULAR TECHNOLOGY PROGRAM CastleBranch Clinical Compliance Tracking System

- I understand that I am required to register for a student account, pay associated fees (approximately \$230 for initial compliance testing, as well as additional costs if other testing is required by specific clinical sites), and remain in compliance with all aspects of the *CastleBranch* Clinical Compliance Tracking System with regard to the following:
 - 1. Background Check
 - 2. Drug Testing
 - 3. Clinical Requirements (physical exam, CPR, testing, and immunizations)
- I agree to comply with this programmatic requirement for pre-clinical medical clearance.
- I understand that failure to comply with this established requirement by announced deadlines may result in suspension from clinical rotations and/or classes, failure to complete the didactic, laboratory, and clinical requirements of clinical courses, and possible dismissal from the program.

Name (print):			
Signature:			
-			
Date:			



APPENDIX N

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT, UNDERSTANDING, AND AGREEMENT TO REMAIN IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE Molloy University Cardiovascular Technology Program STUDENT HANDBOOK

- I have received and thoroughly read the Molloy University Cardiovascular Technology Program STUDENT HANDBOOK
- I understand these policies and regulations and the responsibilities to be undertaken.
- I have had the opportunity to obtain clarification on these policies and regulations.
- I agree to comply with these policies and regulations.
- I understand that failure to comply with the established policies and regulations may result in dismissal from the program.

Name (print):			
Signature:			
Date:			